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Directors, Secretary and Advisers

Ian Kirkpatrick

Non-Executive Chairman

Ian Kirkpatrick, aged 67, 1s Non-Executive Chairman Following a career m consultancy, stockbroking and commerce, he
jomed Bank of Scotland and became a director in the banking division of Bntish Linen Bank Limited, 1its substdiary He has
been a non-executive director or chairman of a number of private, publicly-quoted and public sector orgamsations lan s
Charrman of Prime Estates Limited and 1s also a Non-Executive Director of Baronsmead VCT 4 Plc He was appointed
Chairman of Harvey Nash Group plc (Harvey Nash) in January 1997

Albert Elhs

Chief Executive Officer

Albert Ellis, aged 48, 15 Chief Executive Officer and was appomted to the Board in February 2000, as Group Finance
Director He was appointed as Chief Executive Officer in June 2005 He was previously a Finance Director with Hays Plc

Richard Ashcroft

Group Finance Director

Richard Ashcroft, aged 54, 1s Group Finance Director He was appomnted i October 2005, having previously spent 20 years m
semor financial positions 1n a number of UK pubhc companies, including Michael Page International Pic

Simon Wassall

European Managing Director

Sumon Wassall, aged 49, was appomted to the Board mn October 2005 He has been with the Group since 1994 and 15
responsible for the UK and European IT recnutment operations

Margot Katz

Group Director of Talent

Margot Katz, aged 60, 1s Group Director of Talent and was appomnted to the Board on 1 May 2011 She has previous Board
expenence, Including as the head of professional development for a leading Human Resources consultancy

Tom Crawford

Non-Executive Director

Tom Crawford, aged 61, 1s a Non-Executive Director and was appointed in February 2002 He was previously Joint Managing
Director and founder of the business

Ian Davies

Non-Executive Director

Ian Davies, aged 57, 1s a Non-Executive Director and was appointed in September 2010 Ian, who was also appomted
Chairman of the Audit Commuttee, 15 a former audit partner and has publicly histed Board experience He 1s currently deputy
Chairman of BMT Group Limited and a member of the Council at the Institute of Chartered Accountants

Juhe Baddeley

Non-Executive Director

Julie Baddeley, aged 61, 1s a Non-Executive Director and was appointed in September 2011 Julie 1s also Chairman of the
Remuneration Commuttee She 15 currently a non-executive director of Chrysalis VCT plc and Greggs ple, and Chawrman of
Sustain Limited, a leading environmental consultancy
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

I am dehghted to report another excellent set of results, with organic led growth 1n revenues and profits across the Group, which
exceeded expectations

Whilst the economic recovery continued during the first half of the year, macro-economic indicators began to turn down n the
third quarter and business confidence declined in the UK and Europe as a result In particular, demand from the financial
services secior has been relatively subdued throughout most of the year

However, the Group’s revenues grew 26% exceeding all previous peaks as a result of significant market share gains made
during the downturn due to the success of the Group’s strategy of expanding and diversifying the business, in particular
focussing on high growth technology and the robust economies of northern Europe

Fiancial Results

Revenue for the year ended 31 January 2012 increased by 26% to £533 Om (2011 £422 3m). Gross profit was 15% higher at
£78 5m (2011 £68 5m) with operating profit up 41% at £9 Om (2011 £6 4m) Profit before tax of £8 5m was up 35% on the
prior year (2011 £6 3m) Basic earnings per share were up 36% to 7 97p (2011 5 85p)

Operating cash inflow was 35% higher at £11 3m (2011 £8 4m) before funding the growth in working capital As expected,
with the significant increase in trading, the additional working capital requirement for the year ended 31 January 2012 was
£6 Tm, despite the reduction in debtor days Although the Group has no long term debt, short term working capital funding of
circa £40m 1s available on a rolling twelve month basis for its growing contracting services

Net cash at the year end was £5 2m (2011 £8 3m) due to the growth in working capital and net tangible assets increased by
22 5%

Dividend

The Board 1s recommending an increased final dividend of 1 635 pence per share, 10% up on the prior year (2011 148p) If
approved at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the final dividend, which would take total dividend payouts for the year
to 2 66 pence per share (2011 2 42p), will be paid on 13 July 2012 to shareholders on the register as at 22 June 2012 This
would take the year’s total dividend to 2 66 pence per share (2011 2 42p), and marks the fifth successive annual increase

Strategy

Total shareholder returns* over the five years ending on the balance sheet date, 31 January 2012, compared to a comprehensive
list of comparater companies revealed the Group yielded returns which were within the top quartile

This has been achieved through successfully implementing a strategy of increasing market share predominantly through organic
growth, but complimented by eammgs enhancing bolt on acquisitions This ts executed by implementing a unique portfolio of
services n attractive growth markets in geographies across the world in high value service sectors

The Group’s strategy 15 to expand and diversify the business through offering this broad portfolio of services n diverse chent
sectors too The Group’s key assets - 1ts market leading brands, broad portfohio of services and highly experienced management
team, have been crucial in maintaining and developing existing client relationships, winning additional mandates and retaining
key employees Qur professional values involve placing chents at the centre of our strategy This has resulted 1n an increase n
the Group’s chent base

The Group’s managed outsourcing service, mcluding its valuable offshoring component, gives it competitive advantage and a
measure of stability in imes of economic uncertainty when demand for recruitment 1s naturally lower This benefited the Group
during the downturn and then enabled it to take significant market share as the recovery took hold, as 1t was able to offer
recruitment services to these clients as well as managed outsourcing

The Group continues to focus on growmng 1ts market share across all its disciplines and expanding 1ts portfolic of services
geographically including Vietnam, and now in China and Australia

Tight control of costs and achieving cost efficiencies has always been at the heart of our strategy The Group’s prudent
approach to expansion has served it well over the last five years Continuing this strategy, 1n June 2012 we will be relocating
our largest office in London and achieving significant economies of scale through flexible working practices by reducing our
rental footprint and also taking advantage of the subdued rental market

* The Total Sharcholder Return 13 calculated by adding the dividends 1n the period to the capital gan/loss i the penod and dividing this by the share price at
the start of the pertod

Harvey Nash Group ple Page 3




As tighter credit markets squeeze smaller recruitment companies and hmit their ability to fund working capital growth, the
management team 15 mindful of epportumities for earnings enhancmg bolt-on acquisitions, and will explore these as they anse,
1o augment 1ts organic growth

Employees

On behalf of the Board, 1 would like to thank all of the Group’s employees and associates who have worked hard to exceed
expectations during challenging market conditions, In particular, these excellent results could not have been achieved, without
the skill and commitment of our consultants and management The Board appreciates their loyalty and hard work

Board

During the period we were pleased to make two further board appointments and also announced the retirement of Gus Moore
from the Board as a Non-executive director at the Company’s Annual General Meeting on the 30 June 2011

The appointment of Margot Katz, as an Executive Director responsible for Group Talent, to the Board took effect from the 1*
May 2011 This was followed by the appointment with effect from 1¥ September 2011, of Julie Baddeley, a Non-executive
director who chairs the remuneration committee and was recently appointed the Senior Independent Non Executive Director on
4 April 2012

Having overseen the appointment of two mndependent Non Executive Directors 1 the last two years and m order to allow
sufficient time for an external search, I have indicated to the Board my itention to retire following the Annual General Meeting
in 2013 Given the recent changes to the Board I believe this timeframe will allow an orderly transiion and give the
Nomimation Commuttee time to properly consider 1ts options for a replacement Chairman

Current trading and Outlook

Results for the year ended 31 January 2012 exceeded expectations largely as a result of the Group’s broad portfolio of services
and significant market share gains

However, 1n our trading update of the 17 February 2012, expectations for the current year ending 31 January 2013 were revised
when we said the ongoing economic uncertainty in the Euro zene meant that our clients continue to exercise caution 1n relation
to hiring permanent staff and that this had impacted demand for executive recruitment 1n the UK, the Nordics and mamland
Europe

As our chents begin to focus increasingly on the Asia Pacific region, we will invest £0 75m mn new offices in 2012 n Asia
Pacific to meet growing demand in the region and to supplement our existing offices in Vietnam

Whilst the softening of permanent recruitment demand experienced m the fourth quarter has resulted in lower run rates into the
first quarter of the current year, this now appears to have stabilised The outlook for freelance contracting remains encouraging

with little evidence of a slowdown As a result, the Board 1s pleased to report that first quarter trading 15 on track to deliver m
line with current expectations

Ian Km

Chairman

Harvey Nash Group plc Page 4




OPERATIONAL REVIEW
United Kingdom and Ireland

Revenue in the UK and Ireland increased 36% to £178 4m (2011 £131 5m) with gross profit up 8% to £30 7m (2011 £28 3m)
Included n these results are revenues of £7 6m (2011 £6 1m) atiributable to clients based in Asia Operating profit was up 19%
at £3 2m compared to £2 7m the previous year These results are excellent given the challenging UK and Ireland market and the
weak results reported from across the recruitment sector

These are very encouraging results, given the challenging market 1n the UK and Ireland and the well-reported weakness across
the recruitment sector as a whole Once again the Group’s market leading brand and focus on faster growing, new technology,
niche markets have resulted in significant market share gains which have driven the increase in revenue The UK business
continues to capitalise on 1ts strategic advantages, which were recogmsed 1n 2011 by the Orange Business Awards when
Harvey Nash was made a finalist in the Mid Cap Company of the Year category

Demand continues to be strong n the digital and media markets due to the increasing requirements for mobile application
development (smartphone and tablet) and social media mntegration There 1s continuing growth n this area as chents increase
theirr investment 1 onhne retailling and marketing of their products and services This market has therefore suffered from an
acute skills shortage in many areas and the Group 1s well placed to meet demand

In 2010 the Group consohdated 1ts Financial Services practice 1n a new office in the City of London Strategically, the Group
sees contimued opportumties n this sector The mdustry landscape continues to change with fluctuating levels of demand and
the 1mpact of regulatory change bemng felt These trends have enabled the Group to gain market share by leveraging its broad
portfolio of services to meet fluctuations in demand Permanent recrwitment appears to be on the verge of growing again as
mstitutions seek to reduce their reliance on temporary workers, thereby retaining talent, skills and intellectual property

Our UK regional offices performed with revenues up over 20% 1n aggregate dnven by expansion n the Midlands and the North
West Scotland reported the highest increase at 30% despite the weak overall UK economy In Ireland, the Group continued to
achieve profitable growth driven by demand from global corporations based in Dublin

We reported in our Interim Results Statement in September 2011, that the senior executive market 1n particular had been
affected by the weakening of the economy and the subsequent decline in busiess confidence 1n the corporate sector Having
reported a dechne in the final quarter we are pleased to see shightly more confidence returning to the market, run rates are
stabilising mainly due to mproving demand from the Health and Education markets Our specialist expertise and our market
leadership particularly mn healthcare, has continued to open up fresh opportunities in the first quarter of the current year, not
only in the UK but also overseas

Our market leading CIO (Chief Information Officer) search practice saw a significant increase m the number and value of
FTSE 250 mandates this year, and we continue to gain share in a relatively weak market Leadership of the technology and
digital marketing function of an organisation 1s increasingly falling to the CIO, particularly m larger global organisations
During the year, over one thousand IT leaders attended Harvey Nash thought leadership events and our flagship CIO Survey,
one of the largest and most comprehensive of 1ts kind 1n the world, was launched mn eleven countries across four contmnents

Revenue from offshoring was flat throughout the year and some investment in additional headeount also led to a reduction from
therr peak n the prior year However, growth in onshore managed services was strong with large orgamisations seeking to
reduce their supplier base and achieve margin reductions The Group’s market share improved throughout the year particularly
in London with increased revenues up 19%

Tight cost control has always been at the heart of our strategy The Group’s prudent approach to expansion has served 1t well
over the last five years In June 2012 we will be relocating our London office to achieve significant economues of scale and take
advantage of the subdued rental market in the City The relocation will result in circa £0 8m non-recurring costs n the first half
year ended 31 July 2012 with some savings flowing through 1nto the final quarter of the year and savings over a ten year pertod
expected to be m the region of £1 Om per annum begmning the next financial year Capital expenditure 1n the first half,
expected to be approximately £1 5m, will be fully funded through leasehold incentives secured over the mmitial term of the
agreement

Mainland Europe

Revenue in Europe increased 24% to £317 8m (2011 £256 4m) and gross profit increased 23% to £38 3m (2011 £31 1m)
Operating profit was 59% higher at £5 1m compared to £3 2Zm n the previous year

Given the uncertainty and volatility in European markets and the delayed recovery in countries such as the Netherlands, we are
pleased with this performance Our strategy has been expansion in the stronger Northern European region, including the
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Nordics, Benelux and Germany, combined with driving project growth from existing and new chents i our wireless
outsourcing locations 1n Nuremburg and Stuttgart During the year demand for permanent staff’ was strongest m the Nordic
region with overall revenues increasing by 37% and professional recruitment in Sweden nsing by 64% The uncertainty 1n the
Euro zone pushed up demand for temporary or contract staff and numbers of freelance and employed technology speciahsts
rose 21% when compared to 31 January 2011 The demand for flexible labour does not appear to be slowing

In Switzerland the economy has been severely affected by the rapid appreciation of the Swiss Franc This has impacted existing
clients, particularly those in the dominant Financial Services sector who, In many cases, have implemented recruitment freezes
across the board in response to the economic contraction The business had been providing managed services to key financial
services clients for the last two years and the result was an increase in revenues and market share despite the weakness n the
overall recruitment market With substantial upfront mvestment completed in 2010, the return on this 1nvestment flowed
through during 2011 and results from Switzerland have improved when compared to the pnior year

The slow macroeconomic recovery in the Netherlands has been widely reported Actions to reduce the cost base and improve
efficiency using technology and offshoring were successfully implemented as well as investment made 1n additional sales
headcount These actions resulted in a 10% lower contnbution despite an overall 5% ncrease wn revenues Accordingly the
business has been steadily improving on a sequential basis, particularly during the last guarter of the year

In Belgium the Group capitahised on the strong demand for flexible labour across its chent base and numbers working on client
sites increased by 33% at 31 January 2012 compared to a year age Permanent recruitment was lower than the previous year but
higher revenues from its managed services and freelance professionals pushed contribution up 43% Our leading position in the
Betgian market and key portfolio of services strength, has provided a strong platform for growth In the first quarter of the
current year we opened a new second office i Ghent and expect to continue to expand our headcount and operations into the
first half

In the Nordics, revenue growth was strongest in the mid-market professional sector with gross profit nsing 64% Harvey Nash
Alumni 1s the engme of growth with 1ts strong networks and Boardroom relattonships, key to growing the professional
recruitment business by focusing on middle management and speciabist search The successful introduction of an ntenim
management service has also been achieved during the year Whilst Nordic comparues have been affected by the global
economc situation, local markets are relatively robust Harvey Nash Alumni ts now the clear market leader in Sweden having
further increased its overall market share during the downturn

Our acqusition in Norway, Bjerke & Luther AS, reported an encouraging nse of 24% in revenues The acquisition plan
remains on track with further integration actions successfully completed during the year The Group owns 50 1% of the share
capiial and has an ophion at its sole discretion to acquire the remamming share capital of which the final tranche of deferred
consideration 1s capped at 30 5m NOK (£3 Om) Satellite operations in Denmark and Poland reported a strong recovery and in
Finland revenues were up 34% The recovery in France was reflected in increased revenues of 57%, albeit from a low base,
reducing the prior vear loss to broadly breakeven

As has also been widely reported, the German economy was one of the strongest in Europe 1n the prior year and continued nto
the year ended 31 January 2012 The Group’s operations tn Germany represented 40% of the Group’s European results, the
largest single contribution outside of the UK Recruitment growth was strong with gross profit up 33% Demand for project
based technology engineers employed by the Group was highest with freelance recruitment also good, driving the number of
specialists on assighment up 23% year on year Information and communication technology, manufacturing and export growth
are driving client expansion and skills shortages are widespread

Results from the Group’s outsourcing locations in Nuremberg and Stuttgart exceeded expectations despite budgets which were
lower than the previous year reflecting the legacy nature of the work done by the team 1n Stuttgart New clients such as Texas
Instruments and Deutsche Telekom are driving growth 1n raptdly evolving Small Cell Wireless Technology as well as the roll
out of IP based landline networks

We are pleased with the result of our strategic focus, both geographically in the Nordics and also successfully leveraging the
demand for flexible labour at a time of uncertainty in the Euro zone combined with strong export led demand from the German
economy This continued demand for freelance labour 1s providing stability whilst demand for permanent staff 1s lower
compared to the prior year

United States

Revenue in the USA was up 7% at £36 7m (2011 £34 4m) and gross profit up 4% to £9 5m (2011 £9 1m) Operating profit
was up 17% to £0 7m (2011 £0 6m)
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The US recruitment market has been very challenging over the last two years The Group’s focus on offshoring and outsourcing
has resulted m profitable growth when many US based recruitment companies have been reporting losses This was reflected in
much lower demand for permanent [T staff However, in the final quarter of the year business sentiment began to improve and
Jobs and employment 1s once again increasing

Outsourcing and offshoring grew sirongly, increasing revenues by 56% year on year, a major factor contributing to the
resthence of the Group’s US business Our managed services delivered from New York also increased revenues and
contribution Revenues and profits have doubled 1n Colorado and I1linois as recovery finally took hold in these markets

The West Coast was shghtly lower overall due to much higher comparatives and relatively strong demand throughout the
recession particularly in Seattle, Washington The East Coast offices, New York and New Jersey reported more modest growth
as much of the chent base 1s mainly 1n the financial services sector

As the US economy seems to be following the classic recovery pattern whereby flexible and temporary labour demand lead the
market for permanent technology appomtments, we therefore expect improvement in demand for permanent staff to be the key
feature of the coming year Demand continues to grow and we are prudently increasing headcount to take advantage of the
expected growth

Summary

Once again we are delighted with an excellent result across all of our businesses, with organic led growth 1n revenues and
profits increasing n all the major economies and geographies in which we operate The first quarter has got off to a positive
start when compared to budget and we believe that we are very well placed to make further progress as and when business
sentiment improves

-

Albert Elhs
Chiet Executive Officer
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Profit & Loss

Revenue and gross profit grew n each principal geographical region with strong organic growth m the Nordics and Germany in
particular Permanent revenue increased in the year by 23%, contracting revenue by 17%, outsourcing revenue by 4% and
revenue from Managed Services by 41% It was this change in the mix towards lower margin Managed Services, which caused
the overall gross margin to fall to 14 7% (2011 16 2%) The margms on contracting (14%) and outsourcing (30%) were stable
The growth in Managed Services revenue was strongest in the Umted Kingdom (114%), but 1t also grew 1n Mainland Europe
(by 27%) Growth 1n permanent revenue was highest in the Nordics (37%), followed by the rest of mainland Europe (30%) and
the Umted States (25%) It grew in mainland Europe (excluding the Nordics) owing mainly to strong growth in Germany and
Switzerland In the UK, permanent revenue grew by 9%

Continued tight control of costs and further improvements n productivity resulted mn a 41% increase m operating profit to
£90m (2011 £6 4m) Net interest payable rose to £04m (2011 £02m) as a result of increased working capital caused by
growth Profit before tax rose by 35% to £8 5m (2011 £6 3m)

Taxation

The tax charge for the year was £2 6m (2011 £1 9m) giving an overall effective rate of tax of 30 3% (2011 30 5%) This
included an adjustment in respect of prior years of £0 1m (2011 £0 Im) and a deferred tax charge of £1 Im (2011 £0 4m) of
which £0 6m related to a deferred tax habihity on accrued revenue in respect of outsourcing contracts in Germany The balance
related to other iming differences plus the utilisation of brought forward losses The overall effective rate of tax 1s a function of
the mix of profits between the vanous countries in which the Group operates, with mgher rates in the United States, Germany
and Belgium being offset by lower rates in Ireland and Vietnam in particular

Non controlling interest

The non controlling mterest in the year represents the minority share of profit afier tax of Bjerke & Luther AS and
TechDiscovery LLC Dividends to non controlling interests of £0 2m (2011 £0 2m) are payable in the second quarter

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share rose by 36% to 7 97p (2011 5 85p), while diluted earnings per share rose also rose by 36% to 7 86p
(2011 5 80p)

Key Performance Indicators

Productivity as measured by gross profit per employee rose dunng the year by 1 3% while adjusted operating profit per
employee rose by 22 5% The ratio of fee earners to non fee earners increased to 68% from 67%

Average debtor days fell by 6 4% Had debtor days remained the same at year end as prior year, then trade debtors would have
been higher by £3 1m

Balance Sheet

Net assets rose in the year by 4% to £63 5m (2011 £61 3m), while net tangible assets rose by 22 5% to £15 5m (2011 £12 é6m)
The net book value of tangible fixed assets at 31 January 2012 was £3 5m (2011 £4 Om) Additions during the year of £2 0m
included expenditure of £0 7m on hardware and software incurred by Nash Technologies in Germany, rechargeable to chents
Other than the client-related capital expenditure in the German outsourcing business, expenditure was £1 Om, of which £0 6m
was on computer equipment, £0 4m was on leasehold improvements, office equipment, furmiture and fixtures The deferred
mcome tax asset fell by £0 5m to £2 Om mainly as a result of the utilisation of brought forward losses

The carrying value of intangible assets at 31 January 2012 was £48 1m (2011 £48 7m) of which £1 Om related to the Alumni
brand, £0 5m related to the Bjerke & Luther brand and the balance was goodwill The reduction in goodwill was entirely as a
result of exchange movements

Net trade receivables rose to £78 2m (2011 £69 5m) as a result of higher revenue Prepayments and accrued income rose by
£6 7Tm owing mainly to an increase of £3 5m i accrued mncome 1n the Netherlands and £2 2m 1n accrued revenue in
outsourcing contracts in Germany Debtor days fell to 42 9 days (2011 44 6 days) Trade payables rose to £48 2m (2011
£44 4m) as a result of increased trading, while accruals and deferred mcome rose to £32 Om (2011 £23 Om) as a result of
accruals relating to Managed Services, principally in the Netherlands but also in the United Kingdom and Belgium Provisions
for hiabilities and charges of £0 4m relate to property leases expining in 2012, 2013, and 2014
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Cash Flow

There was a strong operating cash inflow 1n the year before changes in working capital of £11 3m (2011 £8 4m) Changes m
working capital consumed £6 Tm (2011 £1 6m inflow) Income tax paid was £2 8m and this included £1 0m of tax
prepayments 1n Germany following the agreement of prior year tax computations by the tax authonties Capital expenditure
totalled £2 Om of which £1 Om related to client IT projects in the German outsourcing business The balance of £1 Om related to
mvestment 1n new offices 1n Manchester and Birmingham and catch up investment 1n IT equipment around the world following
a reductron 1 investment dunng the downturn Net nterest paid was £0 4m and dividend payments totalled £2 lm (including
£0 2m paid to non controlling nterests) This resulted, after a foreign exchange loss of £0 3m, 10 a decrease n net cash dunng
the year of £3 Im to £52m (2011 £8 3m) To aid transparency, net cash has been spht into gross cash of £18 6m (2011
£15 6m} and gross borrowings of £13 4m (2011 £7 3m)

Banking Facilities

The Group continues to enjoy substantial headroom 1n relatton to its banking facilities At the balance sheet date these
comprised nveoice discounting and overdraft facihities for working capital in the UK of £22 Om and invoice discounting
facilities in Europe of €18m and the United States of $6 Om The mveice discounting facihibes are available on a rolling annual
basis The Group has no term debt

Acquisitions

As previously reported, on 29 Apnl 2010 the Group acquired a 5¢ 1% stake in Bjerke & Luther AS an executive search and
selection company 1n Norway The consideration compnsed cash of Norwegian Kroner 18 5m (approximately £2 O0m) In
addition Harvey Nash has been granted a call option to acquire the additional 49 9% of the shares 1n Bjerke & Luther from the
sellers which may be exercised between 1 February 2013 and 2 Apnil 2013 The censideration for the acquisition of the
additional shares shall be calculated on the same basis as the consideration for the mutial shares, subject to a mimmum
aggregate consideration of NOK 11 5m (approximately £1 3 milhon) and a maximum of NOK 30 5m (approximately £3 4
million)

The value of the call option has been considered and at the balance sheet date, based on valuations 1n the Norwegian market, 15

deemed to reflect the fair value of the final consideration due should the remaming 49 9% be acquired and as such no asset has
been recognised in respect of the option

O/ A" Y
Richard Ashcroft

Group Finance Director
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Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 January 2012

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consohidated financial statements of the Group and Company for the
year ended 31 January 2012

Principal Activities

The Group’s principal activity during the year was the provision of professional recruitment and outsourcing services The
Group has a number of overseas subsidianes and branches in Europe, USA and Vietham The parent company 1s icorporated
and domiciled m the United Kingdom

A review of the business and future developments 1s set out in the Chairman’s Statement, Chief Executive’s Operational
Review and the Financial Review

Key Performance Indicators
The Board considers the followimng performance indicators to be key 1n monitoring the Group’s performance
»  Adjusted operating profit per employee * £14,203 (2011 £11,590)
*  (ross profit per employee £124.239 (2011 £122,626)
e  Average debtor days 42 3 (2011 45 2)
e Fee earner percentage ** 68% (2011 67%)

* Operating profit before non recurring items
** Fee-earners as a percentage of total sales and administration employees
A further analysis of the key performance indicators 1s given in the Financial Review on page 8

Risk Management
The Board reviews the key risks facing the business regularly Outlined below are the main risks that could potentially impact
the Group's operating and financial performance

»  Economic Environment
The performance of the Group 1s aligned to the underlying growth of the economies of the countries i which 1t
operates The group has a number of policies in place to mitigate macro economic risks These include a broad
portfolio of services appropriate to different stages of the economic cycle and a focus on annuity revenue streams
which provide greater visibility of revenue The Group has strengthened 1ts balance sheet by increasing 1ts net cash
position

e Key Chents
The nisk of loss of a key client 15 lessened by the Group not bewng overly reliant on any one chent The Group also

ensures that there are regular reviews of relationships with all chents

» Talent
The loss of senior management or key personnel could adversely affect the Group's results This 1s mitigated by an
ongoing talent management programme, sponsored by the Group’s Executive Council and Group Director of Talent

e«  Technology
The Group relies on technology systems to provide services to clients and candidates These systems are dependent

on a number of suppliers that provide the technology infrastructure and disaster recovery solutions The Group
mitigates technology nisks by conducting regular reviews of technology both externally with third party providers of
IT services and internally

e  Regulatory Environment
The recruitment industry 15 governed by an increasing level of comphance, which vanes from country to country and
market to market The Group mitigates this risk by taking external professional advice where appropriate and
maintaining robust internal controls and processes to ensure comphance with respect to legal and contractual
obligations

e Foreign Exchange
The Group has significant operations outside the UK and 1s therefore exposed to movements in exchange rates The

Group’s policy 15 to mmiumise foreign currency nsk  Harvey Nash manages its exposure on equity investments in
overseas subsihanes through foreign currency borrowings The currency risk of holding assets and habilies m
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foreign currencies across the Group 1s managed by partially matchig foreign currency assets with foreign currency
habilities

Results and dividends

The Group’s profit before tax for the year was £8 5Sm (2011 £63m) A final dividend of 1 635 pence per share has been
declared on 30 April 2012 amounting to £1 2m (2011 1 48p per share amounting to £1 1m) subject to shareholder approval at
the AGM on 28 June 2012 If approved this would take total dividend payouts for the year to 2 66 pence per share (2011
2 42p)

Share Capital
There was no movement 1n shares in 1ssue during the year The number of ordinary shares at 31 January 2012 was 73,450,393
(2011 73,450,393) with a nominal value of £3,672,520 (2011 £3,672,520)

Directors and their Interests

The Directors who held office at the date of this report are shown on page 2 The Company’s Articles of Association require
directors to retire from office every three years, while non-executive directors who have served for over nine years must stand
for re-election every year lan Kirkpatrick and Tom Crawford have served for longer than nine years and therefore offer
themselves for re-election

Gus Moore retired duning the year on 30 June 2011 Juhe Baddeley has been appownted since the conclusion of the last Annual
General Meeting, so 1s required by the Company’s Articles of Association to retire and put herself forward for election

All Executive Directors have service contracts with the Company terminable by either party giving to the other not less than 12
months’ notice The beneficial interests, in both shares and share options, of the Directors and their families are disclosed m
greater detail in the Remuneration Report

Corporate Responsibility

The Board believes that we have a responsibility to play a constructive part within the commumity at large, and that social,
environmental and ethical matters are not only part of the investment mix n order to create a long term sustainable busmess but
simply the right thing to do Aware of the importance of Corporate Responsibility to our employees, especially the new
generation of Talent, the Group’s key message over the last five years, has been 1n that being a member of the Harvey Nash
team also means bemg a valued contributor to society. Our employees are enthusiastic about people and are always ready to
support programmes that benefit the commwuty

The Board encourages employees to make thewr own personal choices, personal political affiliation, participation in the
democratic process and financial support for worthy chanties and community projects by employees is actively promoted The
Group does not take responsibility to do this on employees’ behalf The Group 1s not aligned to a particular pohtical party and
neither does 1t make political donations or material charitable grants However, detailed policies and activaty 1s available for
each country as appropriate A few examples of recent activity and the Group’s general policies are described below

(a) Environmental policy

The Group’s operations, being services, are inherently less damaging to the environment than other business

sectors However, the Board recognises that the business must minimise 1ts impact on the environment and utilises

recommendations from the Carbon Trust to reduce the carbon footprint of the organisation The Group’s environmental policy

statement commuits our company to
¢ Re-cychng - reducing the overall amount of waste being sent to landfill by separating out matertals for recychng,

Water — making use of mains water supply for personal consumption through on site water filtration and punification,

Efficiency - optamising the operation of bumlding cooling and heating systems,

Energy - introducing low energy hghting wherever approprate and feasible,

Technology hardware and software - software which automatically shuts down computers to reduce power

consumption and heat output,

The introduction of ‘eco-fonts’ — these use less ink on printed matter, with only a marginal impact upon quality,

¢ Travelling - promoting the use of public transport and ncreased use of video teleconferencing and online webimars to
reduce the impact of business travel upon the environment,

¢ Procurement — processes are mn place to ensure that the procurement of goods, services and maternal capital tems
such as property include a review and rating of the carbon impact of these acquisitions seeking wherever possible to
reduce the Group’s footprint
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. _uasnable, political and work in the community
A number of senior Director’s mn the business are mvolved with projects and work 1n the commumty

Harvey Nash employees on not-for-profit advisory boards:

Albert Ellis, CEOQ, 15 part of an External Advisory Panel of City Umversity London’s Centre for Information Leadership - a
group of IT industry luminartes who steer the Centre’s education and research direction

Magnus Tegborg, Sweden, Managing Director of Harvey Nash’s Nordic business, 1s a Director on the City of Stockholm
Board, which 1s responsible for the city’s public utilities, tourism, culture and the arts

Nick Marsh, Managing Director Executive Search Board member of Byte Night the IT industry’s annual sleep out in support
of Action for Children

Sherree Young, Head of Practice O1l & Gas 1s NED / Trustee at Kids' City, a London based charity providing childcare and
out of school activities to children

Charitable activity:

In Germany, employees participated i a company run of Nuremberg as well as a 24 hour shared cycle nde on a static bike,
both activities contributing to several chantable orgamsations There were also activities to support the Olga Hospital which

helps sick children and thesr parents
In the UK a number of offices raised over £2,000 for the prostate cancer chanty, Movember

In Birmingham there were a number of activittes supporting the Birmingham Children’s Hospital, including the Dragon Boat
Race (raismg £2,500) and giving personal time to help decorate the ward

In Leeds employees worked with a local school providing careers advice and guidance to sixth formers

People across a number of our UK offices took a leading role n supporting Byte Night the IT industry’s annual sleep out m
support of Action for Children

Harvey Nash’s CEQ raised over £1,000 through cycling from London to Pans

In Sweden, support was given to the Swedish Childhood Cancer Foundation through a number of activities — from sponsored
bike ndes to direct donations — raising over £4,500 In addition, there was support Hand m Hand, a chanty which aims to
elimmate poverty through helping individuals to help themselves Employees helped the Children’s Rights in Society (BRIS) to
recrurt a Secretary General on a cost neutral basis

In Vietnam, there was a wide range of activities targeted at supporting children 1n need and the poor mncluding providing one
hundred gifts to a children’s hospitat in Ho Ch Minh City, contnbuting to medical fees for seven children suffering from
cancer, donating 350 gifts and 15 scholarships to children m under developed regions of Viemam

In Switzerland, personal donations were made to the disabled children’s charity Stiftung Wunderlampe
{c¢) Employee engagement

Engagement 1s bult partly on respect for the organisation and its leaders, partly on knowing what’s going on, partly on the
abhty to mfluence and achieve, and partly on opportunities for people to grow and develop The Group has plans to meet
expectations 1n all these areas (particularly in the areas of Leadership and Development) and progress 1s measured in an annual
Employee Engagement Survey The Group’s commitment to 1ts employees means that 1t takes actions t0 achieve a common
awareness of all employees in relation to the financial and economic factors that affect the performance of the

company Employees are also systematically provided with information on matters of concern to them and are consulted on a
regular basis to ensure that thetr views can be taken mnto account when making decisions that are hkely to affect their interests
The Group 1s a strong meritocracy, where talent and contribution come first An attractive culture and strong, commercial
corporate values are at the heart of what we do Integrity, transparency, fairness, passion and excellence in delivery to our
chents are just some examples of the professional attributes to which we all aspire We always aim to work n the longer term
\nterests of our chients and candidates and we know this, in turn will work 1 the longer term interests of our shareholders

The Group underlines this commitment with our membership of the Recruitment and Employment Confederation which
requires the Group to observe the highest principles of ethics, equity, integrity, professional conduct and fair practice
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(d) Equal opportunity and diversity

The Harvey Nash Group fully supports the aims of the UK Equalities Act 2010 We believe equality and diversity 1s necessary
for

o mdividuals everyone has the nght to be treated fairly and the opportumty to fulfil their potential

¢ the economy a competitive economy and successful organisations draw on all available talent

s society a more equal society offers more stability in the long term which 1s attractive to business

Network 4 Net-Worth was estabhshed n the USA, this 1s a young professionals networkng organization that aims to build
lasting professional and personal relationships through group networking and personal development sessions The key focus 1s
on Generation Y with an emphasis on the promotion of diverse talent pools

Inspire 1s the fastest growing senior professional network within the executive recruitment sector, and was established by
senior business women from Harvey Nash’s executive search division with funding from the Group Inspire 15 a umque forum
for senior business women to meet and exchange 1deas and experntences with their peers with a mission to promote female
Board and Executive participation Membership has grown to over 1,000 board level members in London, New York and
Sweden Through events, forums, white papers and influence, Inspire plays a major role in promoting gender balance 1n the
board room and within the company This 1s achieved through an active extension of the pool of talent 1n which shortlists are
put together

Harvey Nash Scotland’s participatton in the “Girl Geek” dinner network 1s also aimed at supporting the community of business
women 1n the technology and creative sectors

In the UK, Harvey Nash actively engages with the government of the day and other businesses through its CBI membership
and headline sponsorship of the flagship CBI conference Each year the conference brings together the government, the
opposition parties and business mn one place to debate the pressing 1ssues facing the nation The CBI works with the UK
government, mnternational legislators and policy-makers to help UK businesses compete effectively

Harvey Nash regularly chairs and hosts trade delegations to Vietnam The Group also recognises the valuable contnbution
made by the government of Vietnam in enabling increased mvestment and trade between Europe and Asia and 15 actively
involved at minmsterial level, not only lobbying on behalf of business but also engaging with the Vietnamese leadership on the
strategic challenges and opportunities facing South East Asia

Harvey Nash not only ensures that employment decisions are made consistent with equal opportunities legislation in each
country, but, the Group actively encourages a diversity consciousness among its management, staff and chients One of our key
principles 1s that the Group’s senior management 1s made up of nationals 1n the country mn which they operate, who understand
the market and are naturally integrated i the local business culture

Due constderation 1s also given to the recruitment, promotion, training and working environment of all staff including those
with disabilittes

(e) Health & Safety
It 1s the policy of the Group to take all reasonable and practicable steps to safeguard the health, safety and welfare of 1ts
employees, visitors and other persons who may be affected by its activities
The Group
&  assesses the risk to health and safety,
¢ 1mplements safe systems at work,
»  provides information, mstruction and training,
s regularly reviews 1ts policies

(f) Supplier payment policy

It 15 the policy of the Group to agree approprate terms and conditiens for transactions with suppliers (from standard terms to
mdividually negotiated contracts) and that payment should be made 1n accordance with those agreed terms subject to
compliance with the agreed contractual suppher service levels

The Group endeavours to pay sub-contractors providing technology services within 25 days (2011 25 days) of receipt of their
mvoice This contrasts with the Group’s trade debtors who settled their invoices within 42 days (2011 45 days) Other trade
creditor days of the Group for the year ended 31 January 2012 were 38 days (2011 64 days) based on the ratio of Group trade
creditors at the year end to the amounts invoiced during the year by trade creditors The company has no trading activity
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Substantial Shareholdings

On 25 April 2012, the Company had been notfied that there were holdings of 3% or more n the ordinary share capital of the

Company as follows

Number

of % of

shares total

Standard Life Investments 6,922 506 942
BlackRock 6,870,859 935
Board Directors 5,420,057 738
Mr D Treacher 5,048,826 6 87
Mr D Higgins 4,490,005 611]
Unicorn Asset Management 4,399,523 599
Univensities Superannuation Scheme 4,192,210 571
lenis Asset Managment 3,000,443 408
Henderson Global Investors 2,910,968 396
JPMorgan Asset Management 2,884,200 393
River and Mercantile Asset Management 2,691,827 366
Barclays Stockbrokers 2.1391,565 344

Directors” and Otficers’ Liability Insurance
The Company maintams habihty msurance for the Directors and officers of the Company and 1ts subsidiaries

Employec Share Schemes
The Directors consider that the opportunity 1o own shares in the Group 1s a vital part of motivating and retaining employees
Details of the share schemes are included on page 23

Pensions
The Group operates three defined contribution pension schemes in the UK the Harvey Nash plc Directors’ Returement and
Death Benefits Scheme, the Group Personal Pension Plan and a stakeholder scheme There are other pension schemes
OVvErseas

Authority to purchase own shares
The Directors on behalf of the Company have authornity to purchase up to 10% of the Company’s 1ssued share capital

Political and Chanitable Donations

The Group made no political donations during the year (2011 £ml) The Group made no charitable donations during the year
(2011 £7,000)

As outlined in the Corporate Responsibihty section above, personal poliical affihation, participation m the democratic process

and financial support for worthy charities and comimunty projects by employees 1s actively promoted

On behalf of the Board

— DG

Richard Ashcrolt
Company Secretary
27 April 2012

Harvey Nash Group plc Page 14




Corporate Governance
for the year ended 31 January 2012

The Group supports the Principles of Good Governance and Code of Best Practice as set out in The UK Corporate Governance
Code (2010) The Board has considered the implications of the Code on the Group’s governance and will comply with those
provisions considered appropniate for the size of the Group, these are explained below

Apphication of Principles of Good Governance

Board of Directors

At the start of the financial year there were three Executive and four Non-Executive Directors Margot Katz was appointed as
an Executive director on 1 May 2011, Gus Moore retired as a Non-Executive Director on 30 June 201 1and Juhe Baddeley was
appomnted as an independent Non-Executive Director on 1 September 2011 At the end of the financial year there were four
Executive and four Non-Executive Directors A hst of Director biographies together with their roles 15 given on page |
Following the retrement of Gus Moore, Juhe Baddeley was appomted as Sentor Independent Director She chairs the
Remuneration Committee and 1s a member of the Audit and Nommmation Committees Tom Crawford is not considered
independent owing to the fact that he 15 a significant shareholder The Group has an Independent Chairman (lan Karkpatrick)
who chairs the Nomination Committee and 1s 2 member of the Audit and Remuneration Commuittees Ian Davies, who 15 also
considered independent, chairs the Audit Commuittee and 1s a member of the Remuneration and Nomination Commuittees The
Board members with executive responsibility were the Chief Executive Officer, Group Finance Director, European Managing
Drrector and Group Talent Director

The Board meets at least 10 times per annum and has a fixed schedule for reviewing the Group’s operating performance In
addition other meetings are arranged as required to deal with specific 1ssues or transactions The Board also has a schedule of
matters and responsibilities specifically reserved to itself, the main items of which mnclude

approval of the published financial results and other statements,

appomntments to the Board and other Board Commuttees;

approval of the annual Group Strategic Plan and Budget,

approval for acquisitions, mergers and disposals,

approval for new businesses which require start up capital,

approval of capital expenditure and leasehold agreements over certain thresholds,

approval of material contracts over certain thresholds and those not in the ordinary course of business, and
approval of treasury policy and sigmificant financing arrangements

During the year attendance at the pre-arranged meetings was 100% for Board members apart from Gus Moore, lan Kirkpatrick,
Tom Crawford and Margot Katz who each missed one meeting There were 12 Board meetings in the 12 months to 31 January
2012

The Executive Directors are responsible for the overall operational and financial management of the Group within the
framework set out by the Board The Executive Council sits below the Group Board and executes the day to day running of
operations The Executive Council i1s made up of semor operational management, including the executive directors Outside the
formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board, the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors make themselves available for
consultatton with the Executive team as often as necessary

Procedural comphance 1s monitored by the Senior independent Non-Executive Director and the Group Finance Director (who 15
also the Company Secretary) and Durectors’ appointment and removal 1s a matter for the Board as a whole Independent
professional advice and traming are available to all the Directors The Senior Non-Executive Director 1s available for
consultation with shareholders, through the Company Secretary The Executive Directors have met with the Company’s major
shareholders and other potential investors on a regular basis and have reported to the Board on those meetings

On joming the Board, a new Director receives appropriate mduction mcleding meeting with other Directors and semior
management, visiting the Group’s key operations and meeting the Group’s principal advisers

The Board has a policy of providing reasonable funding for independent professional advice for all Directors n furtherance of
their duties as Directors of the Company

In relation to non-reserved matters the Board 1s assisted by a number of commuttees with delegated authonty

The board discusses and reviews 1ts performance and membership regularly, both mdividually and as a whole, and continues to
consider that 1t 15 operating effectively In the year, a formal survey was conducted to allow the board to provide confidential
feedback on its performance
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Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee meets at least twice a year with the Group’s senior financial management and external auditors to review
the interim and annual financial statements, the accounting policies of the Group, 1ts internal financial control procedures and
compliance with accounting standards The members of the Commuittee are Ian Davies {Chairman), lan Kirkpatrick, Gus
Moore (until his retirement) and Juhe Baddeley The Audit Committee met three imes 1n the year to 31 January 2012 with full
attendance by 1ts members at the time

The Board considers that the membership of the Commiitee as a whole has sufficient recent and relevant financial experience to
discharge 1ts function The Committee has a formal agenda, imetable and terms of reference

During the course of the year ended 31 January 2012 the Committee has

+ reviewed the financial statements and the financial reporting judgements contained within those statements for the Group
and any formal announcements relating to the Group’s financial performance,

¢ reviewed the Group’s mnternal control system and nisk controls,
reviewed various reports and recommendations from the Group’s mnternal audit function,

e made a2 recommendation to the Board in relation to the appomtment, terms of engagement and remuneration of the external
auditors whilst monitoring their independence and objectivity,
reported to the Board any matters, which 1t considered needs action or improvements together with recommended actions,
made itself available to hear any concerns from staff, in confidence, and
reviewed the effectiveness of the audit process

The Commuttee’s full terms of reference are available from the Company Secretary on request

The Audit Committee applies a policy which governs the provision of audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors
and, mn summary, requires significant non-audit services other than tax and other compliance services to be subjected to a
competitive tendering process

The Comimittee 15 authorised 1o engage the services of external advisers, as it deems necessary and at the company’s expense n
order to carry out 1ts function

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee meets at least twice a year The members of the Committee are Ian Kurkpatrick, Gus Moore
(until his retirement), Julie Baddeley and Ian Davies The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee was Ian Kirkpatrick until
the appomntment of Julie Baddeley who took over the Chairman role on 1 September 2011 The Commuttee’s full terms of
reference are available from the Company Secretary on request The Remuneration Committee met twice n the year to 31
January 2012 with full attendance by its members at the ime

The Remuneration Commuttee determines and approves the broad policy and specific remuneration and long term incentive
arrangements of the Company’s Executive Directors and certamn of the senior management The Chief Executive Officer may
be invited to attend and speak at meetings of the Commuittee, but does not participate in any matter which impacts upon his own
remuneration arrangermnents

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors including the Chairman 1s set by the Executtve Directors

The Directors” Remuneration Report on pages 19 to 23 includes details of remuneration pohicy, practices and the remuneration
of the Directors
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Nomination Committee

The Company has a Nomination Committee, which provides a transparent process and procedure for the appomntment of new
Directors to the Board The members of the Commuttee are Ian Kirkpatrick (Chairman), Gus Moore (until his retirement), Juhe
Baddeley, lan Davies and Albert Ellis  The Nomination Committee met once mn the year ended January 2012 with full
attendance by (ts members at the ime Ian Kirkpatrick has indicated his mtentton to retire following the Annual General
Meeting in 2013 This imeframe will allow the Nommation Committee time to consider 1ts options for a replacement
ngorously and will provide an orderly transition given the recent number of changes to the Board

The Committee’s terms of reference, which are available from the Company Secretary on request include

s responsibility for identifying and norminating candidates for appointment to the Board,

= evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge and experience required on the Board, and

s successton planning

Relations with Shareholders

The Board maintains regular dialogue with its institutional shareholders and City analysts by conducting formal presentations,
being readily available for discussion and providing information as required  Shareholder attendance and participation at the
AGM 15 welcomed Amendments to the Company’s articles require shareholder approval at the AGM

Accountability and Audit
The Board made every effort to ensure that this report represents a balanced understandable assessment of the Group’s position
and prospects

The means by which the Board maintains a sound system of internal financial control 1s set out below

Internal Control

The Directors have overall responsibility for ensuning that the Group maintains a system of internal controls, for monitoring
their effectiveness to provide them with reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial information used within the
business and for publication, and that assets are safeguarded There are mherent limitations 1n any system of internal control
and accordmngly even the most effective system can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance agamst misstatement
or loss

The Board identifies and appraises risks, and mamtams control and direction over appropnate strategic, financial, and
organisattonal structure matters with formally defined lmes of responsibility and delegation of authonty There are established
procedures for planning and capital expenditure, for information and reporting systems, and for momtoring the Group’s
business and 1ts performance The Board has delegated to executive management the implementation of the systems of internal
firancial control within an established framework that apples throughout the Group, and 1s responsible for reviewing the
Group’s whistle blowing procedures

The Directors believe the following to be the key procedures established to provide internal financial control

The operation of authorisation procedures

Clearly delegated responsibilities

Close involvement of semor management in day to day activities

Setting of detailed annual budgets with detailed reporting of variance analysis on a monthly basis
The operation of an Audit Commuttee, supported by an internal audit function

During the year, the internal audit function was reviewed by the audit committee Whilst there were no significant concerns
raised, all actions required as a result of the findings were discussed and agreed as part of an Audit Committee meeting

The Directors have reviewed the systems of internal financial control in operation during the year and up to the date of approval
of the Annual Repert and no significant concerns were raised  The process 1s regularly reviewed This process accords with
the 2005 Turnbull Guidance

Comphance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (2010) Provisions
The Company has comphed throughout the year with Section 1 of the Code of Best practice except as follows

Code Provision A3.1 (Board balance and independence), C3.1 (Audit Committee) and B2.1 (Remuneration Committee)
Provision A3 1 and provision C3 1 of the UK Corporate Governance Code indicate circumstances where a director may not be
independent These include having served on the Board for more than nine years from the date of first election, and at any
point when holding the position of Chairman lan Kirkpatrick, whom the Board considers independent, and Tom Crawford are
required to put themselves forward for re-election every year
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The Board appointed Gus Moore and subsequently Juhie Baddeley as the sentor independent Non-Executive Director 1n
addinon to the Company’s existing independent Non-Executive Chairman  In addition, lan Kirkpatrick has indicated his
intention 1o retire following the Annual General Meeting in 2013

Gomng Concern

After having made appropnate enquines mcluding a review of the 2012/13 Group budget, medium term plans and avatlable
banking facihittes compared to funding requirements, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and the
Company have adequate resources to continue n operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue
10 adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements

<;=3‘-D\C1,—mel

Richard Ashcerott
Company Secretary

27 April 2012
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Remuneration Report
for the year ended 31 January 2012

This Report, which has been prepared mn accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 (“the
Regulations™), outlmes the membership and workings of the Remuneration Committee (“the Commuitee”) and provides an
explanation of the vanous elements of the Company’s remuneration policy together with details of Directors’ remuneration in
respect of the year ended 31 January 2012 In accordance with the Regulations, a resolution to approve this Report will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

The Regulations require the Auditors to report to shareholders on the information contained in the ‘Directors” Remuneration’,
‘Interest 1n Share Options’, ‘Directors’ Pension Entitlement’ and the ‘Share Option Scheme’ sections in this Report (“the
auditable parts™) and to state whether, i thewr opumion, these parts of the Report have been properly prepared m accordance
with the Companies Act 2006

Remuneration Policy

Remuneration policy has been developed with regard to the wider debate on executive remuneration and the Board has always
been commutted to ahgning overall compensation with the long term mterests of shareholders balanced by a varnable
component which focuses on current performance

Total shareholder returns (TSR) over the five years ending on the balance sheet date, 31 January 2012, compared with a broad
selection of listed comparator companies, revealed the Group yielded returns which were within the top quartile This has been
confirmed by the Group’s auditors

During the three years ended 31 January 2011 Executive Directors voluntanly accepted pay freezes and fixed remuneration
was frozen throughout this ime Despite the Group remaining profitable throughout the downturn, no bonuses were awarded
during the year ended 31 Januvary 2010 Dunng the year ended 31 January 2010 executive Directors suspended their personal
pension payments to acquire shares in the Group, in lieu, after suffering personal tax at the full marginal rate  No share options
have been awarded to Directors during the years ended 31 Janvary 2011 and 2012

In the years ended 31 January 2011 and 2012 the Group exceeded market expectations and demanding profit targets, whilst
ensuring that the Group generated sufficient trading cash flow to support a 10% mcrease 1n the dividend 1n each of those years
An adjustment to basic salary was implemented with effect from 1 February 2011 No increase to basic salary or any other
allowances 15 proposed for the year ended 3t January 2013, however company pension contributions for directors will increase
from 10% to 12 5% with effect from 1 May 2012 to help reduce a widening gap when compared to market rates

Executive remuneration packages are designed to attract, motivate and retain high calibre executives by rewarding them with
competitive salary and benefit packages These packages are reviewed each year to ensure that they are competitive and to
engage the Executive Board n relation to personal performance and future expectations The Remuneration Commuttee aligns
the busmess objectives and the creation of long term shareholder value, and takes advice from external sources in order to
determine and develop 1ts policies The Group reviews this policy on an on-going basis

The Executive Director remuneration packages consist of
* basic salary

» performance-hnked bonus

» share bonuses and options

» company car allowance

* pension contnibution

+ pnivate healthcare insurance

The performance-hnked bonus 1s payable depending on the level of Group profit for the year compared to budget up to a
maximum of 60% of basic salary 1n cash, plus a further 40% of basic salary in equity, which 1s subject to a formal no-disposal
three year lock up agreement with the Executive

Fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board at the beginning of each financial year During the
years ended 31 January 2011 and 2012, two externally sourced Non Executive Directors have been appomted to the Board
During the downturn Non Executive pay was also subject to the same pay freeze which was voluntarily proposed by executives
and had fallen far behind market rates This was adjusted 1n a two stage process, firstly in the pnor year and then agamn 1n the
current year to bring Non Executive pay in lme with the median for the sector with the result that 1t 15 now more competitive
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Directors’ Service Contracts
In line with Group policy, Directors’ contracts contain notice periods which do not exceed 12 months

The details of the service contracts of directors who held office during the year

Contractual
Contract Unexpired Notice termination
date term period payments
Executive

Albert Elhs 0102 01 Continuous 12 months Unexpired notice period
Richard Ashcroft 14 11 05 Continuous 12 months Unexpired notice period
Simon Wassall 17 10 05 Continuous 12 months Unexpired notice perod
Margot Katz 300611 Continuous 12 months Unexpired notice period

Non-Executive
lan Kirkpatrick 07 08 01 Continuous 6 months Unexpired notice period
Tom Crawford 07 08 01 Continuous 6 months Unexpired notice period
Gus Moore (retired 30 June 11) 07 08 01 Continuous 6 months Unexpired notice period
Ian Davies 30 09 10 Continuous 6 months Unexpired notice period
Julie Baddeley 3006 1 Continuous 6 months Unexpired notice period

Members of the Remuneration Committee

The members of the remuneration commuittee during the year were Ian Kirkpatrick, Gus Moore (until his retirement), Julie
Baddeley and Tan Davies The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee was Ian Kirkpatrick unti the appointment of Julie

Baddeley who took over the Chairman role on 1 September 2011
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The company 15 included 1n the FTSE Smallcap Index and therefore, n the opmion of the Directors, this 1s the index against
which the total sharcholder return of Harvey Nash Group ple should be measured considering the variation in market
capitalisation of the Group over the five year peniod ending 31 January 2012 The Group has outperformed the index on a
Total Shareholder Return basis by a margin 10 45 % *
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* The Total Sharcholder Return 15 calculated by adding the dividends 1n the penod to the capital gain/loss n the period and

dividing this by the share price at the start of the period (assuming dividends re-investexd)

Directors®’ Remuneration (audited)

Annual Annual 31 Jan 31 Jan
bonus bonus
in Harvey 2012 2011
Salary Benefits m cash Nash shares
& fees m kind Total Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Executive
Albert Ellis 350,000 24,204 210,000 140,000 724,204 472,321
Richard Ashcroft 175,000 16,683 105,000 70,000 366,683 249,433
Simon Wassall 235,000 21,493 141,000 94,000 491,493 348,194
Margot Katz 75,000 - 30,000 - 105,000 0
Non-Executive
lan Kirkpatrick 69,325 - - - 69,325 61,600
Tom Crawford 34,417 - - - 34,417 26,400
Gus Moore 12,083 - - - 12,083 26,400
lan Davies 39,708 - - - 39,708 8,900
Juhe Baddeley 19,583 - - - 19,583 -
1,010,116 62,380 486,000 304,000 1,862,496 1,193,248

Benefits in kind nclude car allowance, private healthcare and a mited contribution to the cost of personal tax advice

The executive directors recerve performance payments based on the absolute level of increased Group profit for the year, set
aganst demanding budget targets and in relation to external market conditions at the time

Pension contributions

31 Jan 31 Jan
2012 2011
Total Total
£ £
Albert Ellis 35,000 29,150
Richard Ashcroft 17,500 15,120
Simon Wassall 23,500 21,200
76,000 65,470
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Interests in Share Options (audited)
Details of options held by Directors in the Harvey Nash Group plc performance retated Share Scheme are set out below

Share Number Number

Earliest price Exercise at at

Date of exercise  Expiwry  ongrant price 1Feb Granted Exercised Lapsed 31 Jan

Grant date date date (p) (p) 2011  nyear myear Inyear 2012

Albert Ellis 110403 110406 110413 35 307 180,000 - - - 180,000
010404 010407 010414 89 89 180,000 - - - 180,000

250506 250509 250516 60 5 60 4 150,000 - - - 150,000

270508 270511 270518 38 39 250,000 - - - 250,000

Simon Wassall 010302 010305 010312 635 5896 102,943 - - - 102,943
251002 251005 251012 34 243 50,000 - - - 50,000

110403 110406 110413 35 307 50,000 - - - 50,000

171005 171008 171015 565 55 100,000 - - - 100,000

250506 250509 250516 605 604 150,000 - - - 150,000

270508 270511 270518 38 39 150,000 - - - 150,000

Richard Ashcroft 250506 250509 250516 605 60 4 150,000 - - - 150,000
270508 270511 270518 38 39 100,000 - - - 100,000

No other Directors have been granted share options 1n the shares of the Group or other Group entiies None of the terms and
conditions of the share options were vaned during the year The options granted under the Performance Related Scheme are
subject to continued employment and performance criteria relating to earnings per share growth Harvey Nash’s compounded
annual growth 1n earnings per share over the performance penod must exceed the compounded annual growth in the Retail
Prices Index by a mimmum of 3% This performance criterion was chosen to incentivise the maximisation of shareholders’
return If unforeseen circumstances cause the Remuneration Commuttee to consider that the performance cniternia have become
unfair or impractical 1n the circumstances, they may, at their discretton amend the performance criteria

The options are granted at the prevatling market price, calculated as the average of the previous five days mid closing price, at
the time of the grant in accordance with the rules of the scheme There was ml cost to the directors at the date of grant The
market price of the Group shares at the end of the financial year was 58p The range of market prices during the year was
between 49p and 97p

No Directors have recerved options since 27 May 2008

Interest in Shares
The mterest of the Directors 1n the shares of the company were
31Jan12 31Janl

1

Ordinary  Ordinary

shares shares
Albert Ellis 475,853 473,634
Ian Kirkpatrick 5,250 5,250
Tom Crawford 4,736,467 4,586,467
Richard Ashcroft 116,911 114,692
Simon Wassall 78,049 75,830
Margot Katz 6,369 -
lan Davies - -
Julie Baddeley - -

Included n the above, pursuant to the provisions of the Compames Act 2006, Tom Crawford 15 deemed to be mterested 1n his
capacity as a trustee i the ordmary shares of the Company held by Harvey Nash plc Funded Unapproved Pension and Death
Benefit Schemes and the Harvey Nash Directors’ Retirement and Death Benefit Scheme As at the date of this report and 31
January 2012, the mterest was 1n a total of 434,425 ordinary shares

Share Option Schemes (audited)

At 31 January 2012, the following options to subscribe for ordmary shares have been granted to certam employees (including
Directors) under the terms of the Share Option Schemes
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The Harvey Nash Group plc Performance Related Share Schemes

The Performance Related Schemes are admimistered by the Board under the supervision of the Remuneration Committee The
schemes are open to all full time employees except those who have had a material interest in the Group within the previous 12
months The options granted under the Performance Related Scheme are subject to certain performance critena, mcluding
compounded earnings per share growth of 3% plus the retail price index The performance critena associated with this scheme
were chosen to mcentivise the maximisation of shareholders’ return If unforeseen circumstances cause the Remuneration
Comnuttee to consider that the performance criteria have become unfaw or impractical in the circumstances, they may, at therr

discretion amend the performance critena

The schemes’ exercise price 15 determined by the Board but will not be less than the average share price for the five days

immediately preceding the grant of options The Harvey Nash Group plc Performance Related Share Plan 1s an Inland Revenue

Approved Scheme, but the Board 15 able to grant unapproved options under the scheme For schemes from July 2000 the

Group has obtaned agreement from the employee that he or she will settle the employer’s national insurance charge wn respect

of any gain ansing on eventual exercise All options are granted for mil consideration

Ophions
Options at exercisable at
date of Exercisable  Exercisable Exercise 01-Feb 31-Jan
grant From To price 2011 Granted Forfeited Exercised 2012
010302 010305 010312 £059 463,232 - - 123,528 339,704
251002 251005 251012 £0 24 593,000 - - 170,000 423,000
110403 110406 110413 £0 31 375,000 - - 30,000 345,000
271103 271106 271113 £077 25,000 - - - 25,000
010404 010407 010414 £089 180,000 - - - 180,000
240604 240607 240614 £070 40,000 - - - 40,000
020804 020807 020814 £0 70 50,000 - - 25,000 25,000
151804 151107 151114 £0 80 130,000 - - - 130,000
180505 180508 180515 £055 150,000 - - 25,000 125,000
171005 171008 171015 £0 55 310,000 - - - 310,000
270406 270409 270416 £0 68 110,000 - - - 110,000
250506 250509 250516 £0 60 600,000 - - - 600,000
010606 010609 010616 £0 60 100,000 - - - 100,000
250607 250610 250617 £088 735,000 - - - 735,000
251007 251010 2514017 £0 66 50,000 - - - 50,000
270508 270511 270518 £0 39 500,000 - - - 500,000
171208 171211 171218 £0 30 47,500 - - - 47,500
Total 4,458,732 - - 373,528 4,085,204
On behalf of the Board
Charrman
27 Apnl 2012
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report
for the year ended 31 January 2012

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors” Remuneration Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have
prepared the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union, and the parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) In piepanng the group financial statements,
the directors have also elected to comply with IFRSs, 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (!ASB) Under
company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit or loss of the company and group for that peniod In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to

*  select suutable accounting poheies and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

* state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and [FRSs 1ssued by [ASB and applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained n the group and parent
company financiat statements respectively, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue i business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and the group and enable
them te ensure that the financial statements and the DPirectors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Compames Act 2006 and,
as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities

The directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integnty of the company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom
goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed on page 1 confirm that, to the best of their knowledge

+ the group financial statements, which have been prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and
fair view of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit of the group, and

»  the Directors’ Report on pages 10 - 14 and the Chairman’s Statement, Operational Review and Financial Review
contained on pages 3 - 9 includes a fair review of the development and performance of the busiess and the position of the
group, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces

In accordance with Section 418, 1n the case of each director in office at the date the directors” report 1s approved, that

{a) so far as the director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware,
and

({b) he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant

audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that infermation

On behalf of the Board

<-=:9~D\Cl,nm&

Richard Asheroft
Company Secretary
27 Aprnil 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Harvey Nash Group Ple

We have audited the group financial statements of Harvey Nash Group Plc for the year ended 31st January 2012 which
comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income, the Consohdated Balance
Sheet, the Conschdated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes The
financial reporting framework that has been apphed n their preparation 1s applicable law and Internat:onal Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umon

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 24, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to
audit and express an opimon on the group financal statements i accordance with applicable Jaw and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body 1n accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may
come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to gtve reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Harvey Nash
Group Plc Annual Report 2012 to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of
any apparent matenal misstatements or inconststencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opimon the group financial statements

e give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 January 2012 and of its profit and cash flows for the year
then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companmies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

e the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the group financial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the group financial statements, and

¢ the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 15 to 18 with respect to internal control and
risk management systems and about share capital structures 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opimion

e certamn disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
¢  acorporate governance staiement has not been prepared by the parent company
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

» the directors’ statement, set out on page 18, in relation to going concern,
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¢ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s comphance with the mne provisions of the June
2008 Combined Code specified for our review, and

»  certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on directors’ remuneration

Other matters
(a) We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Harvey Nash Group ple for the year ended 31
January 2012 and on the mformation in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s descnibed as having been audited

(b) The mamntenance and integrity of the Harvey Nash Group Plc website 1s the responsibility of the directors, the work carried
out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibihity for
any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were mitially presented on the website

{c) Legislation 1n the Umted Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions

4

B

Nigel Reynolds

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

27 Apnl 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 January 2012

2012 2011
Notes £ 000 £°000
Revenue 5 532,952 422,300
Cost of sales (454,433) (353,752)
Gross profit 5 78,519 68,5438
Total administrative expenses (69,543) {62,102)
Operating profit before non recurring items 5.7 8,976 6,479
Non recurnng items - (33)
Operanng profit 5,7 8,976 6,446
Finance income 6 25 204
Finance costs 6 {466) (400)
Profit before tax 8,535 6,250
Income tax expense 8 (2,588) {1,908)
Profit for the year 5,947 4,342
Attributable to
Owners of the parent 5,815 4,253
Non controlling interest 132 89
5,947 4,342
Earnings per share for profit attributable to Owners of the parent
- Basic earnings per share 9 7.97p 5 85p
- Diluted earmings per share 9 7.86p 5 80p
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 January 2012
2012 2011
£ 7000 £ 000
Profit for the year 5,947 4,342
Foreign currency translation differences ~ {1,594) 2,003
Other comprehensive income for the year (1,594) 2,003
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,353 6,345
Total comprehensive income atiributable to
Owners of the parent 4,221 6,256
Non contrelling interest 132 89
4,353 6,345
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 January 2012

Notes 2012 2011
£°000 £'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 3,545 3,950
Intangible assets 11 48,052 48717
Deferred income tax assets 8 1,983 2,488
53,580 55,155
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18,550 15,588
Trade and other receivables 12 97,357 83,670
115,907 99,258
Total assets 169,487 154,413
LIABILITIES
Non-current habilities
Contingent consideration (19) (19
Deferred income tax Liabihities 8 (908) (308)
Provision for llabilities and charges 29 (88) {193)
(1,015) {520)
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 13 (91,113) (83,239)
Current income tax habilines 14 (178) (1,861)
Borrowings 26 (13,366) (7,310}
Proviston for habilities and charges 26 (287) (133)
(104,944) (92,543)
Total habilities (105,959 (93,065)
Net assets 63,528 651,348
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity shareholders
Ordinary shares 17 3,673 3,673
Share premium 19 8,425 8,425
Shares to be 1ssued - -
Fair value and other reserves 15,079 15,079
Qwn shares held (424) {304)
Cumulative translation reserve 6,197 7,791
Retained earmings 20 30,203 26,203
Total shareholders’ funds 63,153 60,867
Non controlling interest 1in equity 375 481
Total equity 63,528 61,348

Parent Company Number 03320790
The Censolidated financial statements on pages 27 to 52 were approved by the Board on 27 April 2012 and signed on 1ts behalf by

e\ vy
Tan KirkpMgnick Richard Ashceroft

Chairman Group Finance Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 January 2012

Share
capital

Note £°000

Share
premium

£°000

Shares
to be
1ssued

£°000

Fair
value and
other
reserves

£°000

Own
shares
held

£°000

Cumulative
translation
reserve

£°000

Retained
earnings

£°000

Total

Non
controiling
interest in
equity

£°000

Total equity

£°000

Balance at

1 February 2010

3,673

8,425

49

15,079

(412)

5,788

23,603

56,205

586

56,791

Profit for the year
Currency
transfation
adjustments

2,003

4,253

4,253
2,003

89

4,342
2,003

Total
comprehensive
income for the
year
Acquisition of
Non controlling
nterest

Dividends paid to
non-controlling
interests
Employee share
option and bonus
plan*

IFRS 2 Deferred
Tax charge to
equity
Settlement of
deferred
consideration
Dividends pad

(49)

66

42

2,003

4,253

(14)

(1,661)

6,256

81

(14)

(1,661)

89

96

(290)

6,345

96

(290)

81

(14)

(1,661)

31 January 2011

3,673

8,425

(304)

7,791

26,203

60,867

481

61,348

Profit for the year

Currency
translation
adjustments

(1,5-94)

5,815

5815
(1,594)

132

5,947
(1,594)

Total
comprehensive
income and
expense for the
year

Dividends paid te
non-controlling
Interests
Employee share
option and bonus
plan*

Own Shares
purchased*

Dividends pad

142

(262)

(1,594)

5,815

13

(1,828)

4,221

155
(262)

(1,828)

132

(238)

4,353

(238)

155

(262)

(1,828)

31 January 2012

3,673

8,425

15,079

@8

6,197

30,203

63,153

375

63,529

* The movements in the Own shares held reserve relate to shares awarded from and purchased by the Employee Benefit Trust
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Consohdated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 January 2012

Notes £%g(l)3 2011
£ 000

Profit before tax 8,535 6,250
Adjustments for
- depreciation 10 2,255 1,863
- amortisation 1 73 70
- loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 30 15
- finance income 6 (25) (204)
- finance costs 6 466 400
- share based employee settlement and share option charge 27 - 20
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 11,334 8,414
Changes in working capital (excluding the effects of acquisition and exchange
differences on consolidation)
- Increase 1n trade and other receivables (12,496) (8,707)
- Increase in trade and other payables 5,773 10,767
- Increase / (Decrease) in provisions 29 46 (455)
Cash flows from operating activities 4,657 10,019
Income tax paid (2,847) (964)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,810 9,055
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 10 (1,275) (593)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment — rechargeable to chients 10 (721) (1,916)
Cash acquired with acquisitions - 575
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings - (2,043)
Interest recerved 6 25 204
Net cash absorbed from investing activities (1,971) (3,773)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary shares 147 12
Purchase of own shares {262) -
Dividends paid to group shareholders (1,828) (1,661)
Dividends paid to non-controthing interests {238) (290)
Interest paid 6 {466) (400)
Increase m borrowings 6,056 297
Net cash generated/(used) in financing activities 3,409 (2,042)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,248 3,240
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15,588 12,159
Exchange (losses) /gains on cash and cash equivalents (286) 189
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18,550 15,588
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Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements

1. General Information
Harvey Nash Group plc (‘the Company’) and its subsidianies (together ‘the Group'} 1s a leading provider of specialist
recruitment and outsourcing solutions The Group has offices in the UK, Europe, United States and Vietham

The Company 1s a public hsted company tncorporated in the UK  Its registered address 1s 13 Bruton Street, London W1J 6QA
and its lristing 15 on the London Stock Exchange

2. Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These pohcies
have been consistently applied to both years across the group

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc have been prepared mn accordance with International Financal
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Umon (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), IFRIC interpretations and the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to Companies reporting under IFRS The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention on a going concern basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial
habihities (including derivative mstruments) at fair value through profit or loss The preparation of financial statements
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates It also requires management to exercise Its
judgement n the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consohdated financral statements are disclosed in
note 4 The main section of these financial statements presents the financial statements of the Group prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the European Union Pages 53 to 59 show the financial
statements of the Company prepared under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP).

(1) New and amended Standards, adopted by the Group

There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial year that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Group

(1iy New Standards, amendments and interpretations 1ssued but not effective for the financial year and not early adopted

The following standards and amendments to exasting standards have been published and are effective for future accounting
peniods and the Group has not early adopted them

IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’
IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interests in other entities’
IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value measurement’

The Group 1s yet to assess the full impact of the above and mtends to adopt them n the relevant future accounting periods
which they become mandatory, subject to endorsement by the EU where relevant

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a matenial impact on
the Group

(b) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the results of the Company and all of 1ts subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 31

January each year and are based on consistent accounting policies

Interests acquired n subsidiary undertakings are consolidated from the date control passes to the Group Transactions and
balances, including unreahsed profits, between Group companies are eliminated

The purchase methed of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group The cost of an

acquisition 15 measured as the far value of the assets given, equity instruments 1ssued and habilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition Identifiable assets acquired and habilities and contingent
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habilities assumed 1n a business combination are measured nitially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any minority interest

The interest of Non controlling interests n the balance sheet 1s stated at the minonity’s proportion of the carrying values of the
assets and habihihes recognised

{c) Revenue recognition

Revenue compnses the fair value of the sale of goods and services, net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts and after
elimimating sales within the Group

The Group denives its revenue in the contract services and tntenm businesses on a time and materials basis It 1s recognised as
services are rendered as validated by receipt of a client approved timesheet or equivalent For fixed price development work,
revenue 1s recognised on the percentage completion basis, using pre-specified milestones or a client sign off to trigger invoices
and the estimate of profit For contingency permanent placements, revenue 1s recognised and the chient 1s mmvoiced on
acceptance of the candidate

Executive recruitment and assignment fees are recogmsed as services and are provided, typically 1n three stages, retainer,
shortlist and placement fee

Revenue antictpated, but not invoiced, at the balance sheet date, 15 accrued on the balance sheet within prepayments and
accrued ncome Revenue invoiced not earned at the balance sheet date 1s recorded as a liability within accruais and deferred
mncome

(d) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses The cost of
property, plant and equupment 1s their purchase cost, together with any incidental costs of acquisition

Depreciation 1s calculated so as to write off the cost of the assets, less their estimated residual values, on a straight-line basis
over the expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

Leasehold improvements — over the term of the lease
Office equipment — 20% straight line

Furniture, fixtures and equipment — 20% straight line
Computer equipment — 33 33% straight line

Motor vehicles — 25% reducing balance

The assets® residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted 1f appropriate at each balance sheet date  An asset’s
carrying amount 1s written down immediately to 1ts recoverable amount 1f the asset’s carrying amount 1s greater Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts The changes are mncluded 1n the mncome
statement

Property, plant and equipment purchased to deliver outsourcing projects, which have been recharged to clients at cost, remain
the legal property of Harvey Nash They have therefore been capitalised within the balance sheet and depreciated at the rates
listed above

The recharge of the asset at cost to the client represents a disbursement associated with the project delivery and 1s recognised m
line with the depreciation

(e) Foreign exchange

Items included 1n the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment 1n which the entity operates (the “functional currency”™) The consolidated financial statements are
presented 1n sterling which 1s the Company’s functional and presentational currency

Monetary assets and habilities denommated m foreign currencies in each company are translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction

On consolidation, revenues, costs and cash flows of overseas undertakings are included in the Group mmcome statement at

average rates of exchange for the period Assets and habilities denominated 1n foreign currencies are translated into sterhing
using rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and any differences arising are taken to reserves
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Exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity on consolidahon When a foreign
operatton 15 sold, such exchange differences are recognised 1n the iIncome statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

(f) Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating lease and contract hire agreements are taken to the income statement on a straight line basis
over the lease termm  Reverse premiums and lease incentive benefits are recognised as a reduction 1n rental expense The benefit
1s allocated on a straight line basis over the lease term

(g) Intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net 1dentifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of the acquisinon Goodwll 1s tested annually for impairment and carned at cost less
accumulated impanrment losses

Other acquired mtangible assets are capitalised at cost Intangible assets acquired as part of a busiess combination are
capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisition Intangible assets are amortised to residual values over the useful econonuc
life of the asset The brand intangible assets recognised in the acquisitions of Alumm AB and Bjerke & Luther AS were valued
using the relief from royalty method The brand intangible assets are being amortised on a straight line basis over their useful
economic lives which the directors consider to be 20 years

(h) Impairment of assets

All assets are tested annually for impairment and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable An impawrment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount s the higher of the asset’s farr value less costs of sale and value in
use For the purposes of assessing impawrment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units) Where an impairment subseguently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
mncreased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
original carrying value prior to any impairment charges A reversal of an mmpaurment charge 1s recognised m the income
statement tmmediately, unless the relevant asset 1s carnied at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation reserve adjustment

{1 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recogmsed mmtially at fair value A provision for impairment of trade receivables 1s established
when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the
recervables Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorgamsation, and default or delinquency 1n payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade
recervable 15 impaired The amount of the provision 1s the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the onigmal effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 15 reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss 15 recognised in the mcome statement within
‘admimistrative expenses” When a trade receivable 1s uncollectible, 1t 15 written off agamst the allowance account for trade
recervables  Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited aganst ‘administrative expenses’ in the
income statement

() Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term hquid investments with
origmal maturities of three months or less

{k) Share capatal

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid 1s deductible from equity attnibutable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received 1s included
n equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders

(I} Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax 1s provided in full, using the hability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 1n the consolidated financial statements Deferred income tax ts determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted by the balance sheet date and expected to apply when the related deferred
mncome tax asset 1s realised or the deferred income tax hability is settled

Deferred income tax assets are recogntsed to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profit will be available agamnst
which the temporary difference can be utilised

Harvey Nash Group ple Page 33




(m) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders 1s recognised as a hiability 1n the Group’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders Interim dividends are recogmsed when paid

(n) Employee benefits

Pension obhigations

Wherever possible the Group operates defined contribution pension schemes, under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into separate entiies The Group has no legal or constructive obhgation to pay further contributions Pension costs are charged
to the income statement n the year in which they anse In Germany and Switzerland, legislation requires the operation of
defined benefit pension which contain an element of defined benefit, which are fully insured and for which therefore there are
no untecorded liabilities

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for benefits The Group recognises termination benefits when 1t 1s demonstrably
committed to termunating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal

Bonus plan
The Group recognises a habihity and an expense for bonuses when contractually obliged

Share-based plans

The Group’s management awards certain employees share options on a discretionary basis The options are subject to three-
year vesting conditions and theiwr fair value 1s recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase
retamned earnings over the vesting pertod The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital and share premium when the options are exercised For options exercised agamnst own shares held, the shares are
removed from the own shares held reserve The Group has applied IFRS 2 ‘Share based payments’ to all instruments granted
after 7 November 2002 but not fully vested as at 1 January 2005 and has adopted the Black-Scholes model for the purposes of
computing ‘fair value’ Deferred tax 1s also provided based upon the expected future tax deductions relating to share based
payment transactions and 1s recognised over the vesting period of the schemes concerned

(o) Provisions
Provisions are recogmsed when a present obligation exists as the result of a past event and 1t 1s probable that this wall result in
an outflow of economic benefit, the size of which can be reliably esttmated

(p) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are written off as incurred or in the case of imtial arrangement fees, may be spread over the term of the facility
where appropriate Invoice discounting fees are recognised as mcurred

(q) Financial mstruments
Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provistons of the instrument

(r) Financial assets

The group classifies its financial assets in the following categories at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables
The classificatton depends on the purpese for which the financial assets were acquired Management determines the
classification of its financ:al assets at initial recognition

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading A financial asset 15 classified mn this
category 1f acquired principaliy for the purpose of selhng in the short-term Assets 1n this category are classified as current
assets

(u) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted n an active
market They are included 1n current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date These are
classified as non-current assets

(s) Non-recurring items

Non-recurnng 1tems are presented separately on the face of the Consolidated Income Statement due to their nature and
size The separate reporting of such 1tems helps to provide a better indication of the Group’s underlying business performance
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3. Financial Risk Management

Financing

The Group’s principal financial mstruments are invoice discounting, overdrafts, cash and short term deposits The Group has
other financial instruments such as trade receivables and, trade payables that anise directly from its operations Acquisihions are
financed through a mixture of operating cash flow and equity Working capital finance for day-to-day requirements 15 provided
through operating cash generation, invoice discount facilities and small short term overdraft facilines Where apphicable, funds
are then made available for the financing of the Group’s subsidiaries through mtercompany toans

Objectives, policies and strategies

The most significant treasury exposures faced by Harvey Nash are raising finance, managing interest rates and currency
positions as well as investing surplus cash in high quality assets The Board has established clear parameters, mcluding levels
of authority, on the type and use of financial instruments to manage these exposures Transactions are only undertaken if they
relate to underlying exposures and cannot be viewed as speculative

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a gomg concern n order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital In order to mamntain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, retum capital to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

During 2011/12, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2010/11, was to have adequate headroom and access to cash
facilities to meet 1ts requirements

2012 2011
Net debt £7000 - -
Total equity £7000 63,529 61,348
Total capital £°000 63,529 61,348

Gearng ratio % - -

Interest rate nsk management
The Group’s policy is to mimimise interest charges through cash poeling and active cash management

Foreign exchange risk management

The Group’s policy 1s to mmimise foreign currency risk Harvey Nash manages its exposure on equity investments in overseas
subsidianes through foreign currency borrowings The currency nisk of holding assets and habilities in foreign currencies
across the Group 1s managed by partially matching foreign currency assets with foreign currency hiabihities

In the year to 31 January 2012, 1f sterling had strengthened by 10% against the US dollar with all other varables held constant,
operating profit for the year would have been £53k (2011 £62k) lower mamly as a result of foreign exchange losses on
translation of dollar-denominated assets and liabihities

In the year to 31 January 2012, if sterling had strengthened by 5% against the euro with all other vanables held constant,
operating profit for the year would have been £248k (2011 £176k) lower mamly as a result of foreign exchange losses on
translation of euro-denominated assets and habilities

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk It has policies in place to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers with an appropnate credit history.

The table below shows the credit limit and balance with the Bank at the balance sheet date

2012 2012 2011 2011

£°000 £ *000 £°000 £°000

Rating * Credit Limit Balance Credst Lumit Balance

Bank overdraft — secured A-1 2,000 103 2,000 1,387

* Standard and Poor's rating

Harvey Nash Group plc Page 35




Liqumdity risk
Prudent Liquidity risk management imphes maimntaining sufficient cash and commutted credit facilities

Management momtors rolling forecasts of the Group’s hquidity reserve (comprising undrawn borrowing factlity, cash and
nvoice discounting) on the basis of expected cash flow

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates

Impairment of goodwill

Determinmg whether the geodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value 1n use of the cash-generating umts to which
goodwill has been allocated The value 1n use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating untt and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value

Income tax

The Group 1s subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdichions  Significant judgement 1s required 1n determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determnation 1s
uncertain during the ordinary course of busimess The Group recogmses habihties for anticipated tax 1ssues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these matters 1s different from the amounts that were
mmally recorded, such difference wili impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period m which such
determination 1s made

Share options

Share options are granted on a discretionary basis and vest after three years service The fair value of options granted during
the year was determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model The significant inputs into the model were share price at
grant date, expected price, expected option life and risk free rate of 4 30% The volanlity measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns 1s based on statistical analysis of daily share prices

Bad and Doubtful Debts

Amounts owed to the Group have been reviewed and provision has been made for possible non-collection of bad or
doubtful debts This 1s done on a case by case basis across the Group taking into account differences between countries and
service lines

Onerous Leases

Where the Group has matenal obligations under property leases and where the space has ceased to be used for the purposes of
the business, full provision 1s made for future net outstanding habalities under such leases after taking into account the effect of
anty expected sub-letting arrangements

5. Segment Information
IFRS 8 requires disclosure of information about the Group’s operating segments It requires a management approach under
which segment information 1s presented on the same basis as that used for mnternal reporting purposes The chief operating

decision maker has been 1dentified as the Group Board

This has resulted 1n three reportable segments, UK and Ireland, Rest of Europe and United States  Asia Pacific 1s included
the UK and Ireland segment 1n line with the way the results are analysed by the Group Board

The directors do not consider revenue by origin to be matenally different from revenue by destination  Also all revenue 1s
external and not inter-segment

Services provided by each reportable segment are permanent recruitment, contracting and outsourcing
The Group Board analyses segmental information as follows

Revenue
2012 2011
£'000 £°000
United Kingdom & Ireland 178,437 131,540
Rest Of Europe 317,789 256,386
United States 36,726 34,374
Total 532,952 422 300
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Gross Profit

2012 2011
£°000 £°000
United Kingdom & Ireland 30,730 28,347
Rest Of Europe 38,307 31,077
United States 9 482 9,124
Total 78,519 68,548
Operating Profit
2012 2011
£°000 £°000
United Kingdom & Ireland 3,207 2,684
Rest Of Europe 5116 3,220
United States 653 575
Operating profit before non-recurring 1tems 8,976 6,479
Non- recurring items - (33)
Total 8,976 6,446
Depreciation and amortisation charge
2012 2011
£°000 £7°000
United Kingdom & Ireland 235 497
Rest Of Europe 1,949 1,330
United States 71 106
Total 2,255 1,933
Within the Rest of Europe segment there 1s an amortisation charge of £73k (2011 £70k)
6. Finance Income and Costs
2012 2011
£000 £°000
Interest expense
Interest payable on bank borrowings (466) (400)
Finance costs (466) (400)
Bank interest 25 100
Other 1nterest - 104
Finance costs — net (441) (196)
Other 1nterest m the prior year related to interest recerved from HMRC for a tax refund
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7. Operating Profit
The following 1tems have been included i armving at operating profit

2012 2011
£°000 £°000
Employee benefits (note 22) 47,064 41,884
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,255 1,863
Amortisation 73 70
Auditors’ remuneration
- fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of parent company and consohidated 21 18
accounts
- fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of the company’s subsidiartes pursuant 395 325
to legislation
- fees payable to the company’s auditor and associates for other services
- services relating to taxation 44 87
- all other services 37 144
Operating lease rentals payable 6,881 7,037
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 30 15
8. Income tax expense
2012 2011
£°000 £°000
Corporation tax on profits in the year — UK 32 -
Corporation tax on profits 1n the year — overseas 1,384 1,418
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years 67 137
Total current tax 1,483 1,555
Deferred tax 1,105 353
Total tax charge 2,588 1,908
The tax for the year 1s higher (2011 higher) than the standard UK corporation tax rate applied to the pre-tax profit
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The differences are explamned below for 2012 and 2011 using the UK standard rate of Corporation tax

2012 2011

£°000 £°000
Profit before tax 8,535 6,250
Tax at standard rate of UK Corporation tax (2012 26% and 2011 28%) 2,219 1,750
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 803 376
Income not taxable (127} (13)
Expenses deductible locally (129) (249)
Accelerated capital allowances 84 -
Short term timing differences {186) 25
Utihisation of previousty unrecogmised tax losses (22) (89)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset 15 recognised 100 101
Deferred tax adjustment 1n respect of prior years 16 123
Adjustments to tax in respect of prior year 66 138
Profits taxed at overseas rates (72) (225)
Losses recogmised at overseas rates (25) (1
Other 29 32
Total taxation 2,588 1,908
Current tax:
Tax on profit in the year 1,416 1,418
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years 67 137
Total current tax 1,483 1,555
Deferred tax:
Ongination and reversal of timing differences 998 243
Adjustments n respect of prior years 107 124
Deferred tax to equity B (14)
Total deferred tax charge 1,105 353
Total tax charge 2,588 1,908
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Deferred tax

2012 2011
£°000 £°000
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months 1,433 1,474
Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months 550 1,014
1,983 2,488
Deferred tax habilities
Deferred tax habtlity to be recovered after more than 12 months (154) (267)
Deferred tax hability to be recovered within 12 months (754) 41
(908) (308)
Net deferred tax asset 1,078 2,180
This 1s analysed below
Accrued
Accelerated tax Share-based Tax mterest
Asset depreciation payments losses  charges* Other Total
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
1 February 2011 4 227 1,000 1,145 112 2,488
Charged /
(credited) to
income statement
and equity (1) (135) (206) (51) {112) (505)
31 January 2012 3 92 794 1,094 - 1,983

* The deferred tax asset recognised for accrued interest charges relates to Group interest charges payable by the US business

Unremitted Accrued

Liability earnings  Revenue Other  Total
£°000 £°000 g-9p9 £°000
1 February 2011 (148) - (160) 308y

(Credited) to
income statement

and equity (6) (635)

4l (600)

31 January 2012 (154) (635)

(119)  (908)

Due to the uncertainty of recoverability, deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses, depreciation 1n excess of accelerated capital
allowance and deductible temporary differences of £1,925,711 (2011 £1,888,159) have not been recognised Future tax

charges may be reduced as a result of tax losses for which a deferred tax asset 15 currently not recognised

In addition to the changes 1n rates of Corporation tax disclosed above a number of further changes to the UK Corporation tax
system were announced m the March 2012 UK Budget Statement Legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from
24% to 23% from 1 April 2013 1s expected to be included in the Finance Act 2012 Further reductions to the main rate are
proposed to reduce the rate to 22% from 1 April 2014 These further changes had not been substantively enacted at the balance

sheet date and, therefore, are not included n these financial statements

9, Earnings Per Share

2012 2011
Profit attributable to shareholders £°000 5,815 4,253
Weighted average number of shares 72,948,499 72,698,315
Basic earnings per share 7.97p 5 85p
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Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the eamings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in i1ssue during the year, excluding those held in the employee share trust, which are treated as

cancelled

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares n 1ssue 15 adjusted to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares The Group has two categories of potental ordinary shares those share options granted to
employees where the exercise price 1s less than the average price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the year, and
deferred consideration shares to be 1ssued

2012 2011
Profit attributable to shareholders £°000 5,815 4,253
Weighted average number of shares 72,948,499 72,698,315
Effect of dilutive securities 1,016,933 612,315
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 73,965,432 73,310,630
Diluted earnings per share 7.86p 5 80p
10. Property, Plant and Equipment
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Office and Computer Motor
improvements equipment equipment equipment vehicles Total
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000  £°000 £°000
Cost
At | Febrvary 2011 2,155 758 1,570 11,911 36 16,430
Exchange adjustments (€3} (N 112 (183) (6) (165)
Addstions at cost 224 102 117 832 - 1,275
Additions rechargeable to Clients* - - - 721 - 721
Disposals ()] (1) (26) (192) - (225)
At 31 January 2012 2,292 852 1,773 13,089 30 18,036
Ac¢cumulated depreciation
At | February 2011 1,657 679 1,364 8,760 20 12,480
Exchange adjustments 68 2 (104) @n 6 (49
Charge for the year 111 28 300 1,814 2 2,255
Disposals (6) (1) 4) (184) - (193
At 31 January 2012 1,830 708 1,556 10,369 28 14,491
Net book amount
At 1 February 2011 498 79 206 3,151 16 3,950
Net book amount
At 31 January 2012 462 144 217 2,720 2 3,545

»  Additions rechargeable to clients relate to Nash Technologies in Germany
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Furniture,

fixtures
Leasehold Office and Computer  Motor
improvements equipment equipment equpment vehicles Total
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Cost
At 1 February 2010 1,955 726 1,476 9,814 35 14,006
Exchange adjustments 29 19 (6) (96) 1 (53)
Additions at cost 182 39 20 352 - 593
Addiions rechargeable to Clients* - - - 1,916 - 1,916
Acquisitions** - - 9} 2 - 93
Disposals (1 (26) (1) an - (125)
At 31 January 2011 2,155 758 1,570 11,911 36 16,430
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2010 1,411 642 1,261 7,452 17 10,783
Exchange adjustments (34 a3 29 (46) - (64)
Charge for the year 287 68 74 1,431 3 1,863
Disposals (7 (18) - )] - (102)
At 31 January 2011 1,657 679 1,364 8,760 20 12,480
Net book amount
At 31 January 2011 498 79 206 3,151 16 3,950
** Acqusitions relate to fixed assets acquired in Norway
The Group held no assets under finance leases or hire purchase contracts 1n the current or pnor year
1L, Intangible Assets
Brands Goodwill Total
£°000 £°000 £7°000
Cost
At | February 2011 1,841 47,074 48,915
Exchange adjustrnents {69) (523) (592)
At 31 January 2012 1,772 46,551 48,323
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 February 2011 (198) - (198)
Charge for the year (73) - (73)
At 31 January 2012 (271) - 271)
Net book amount at 1 February 2011 1,643 47,074 48,717
Net book amount at 31 January 2012 1,501 46,551 48,052
Brands Goodwill Total
£°000 £ 000 £°000
Cost
At 1 February 2010 1,133 45,146 46,279
Exchange adjustments 161 609 770
Additions at cost 547 1,319 1,866
At 31 January 2011 1,841 47,074 48,915
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 February 2010 (128) - (128)
Charge for the year (70) - (70
At 31 January 2011 {198) - {198)
Net book amount at 31 January 2011 1,643 47,074 48,717
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The carrying amounts of the intangible assets by acquisition are as follows

2012 2011
Goodwill £000 £°000
Harvey Nash BV 2,668 2,748
Harvey Nash US 11,159 11,018
Techpartners Group 10,807 10,807
Harvey Nash IT Consulting NV 5,801 5,964
Impact Executives Limited 3,702 3,702
Alumn AB 5,981 6,274
Harvey Nash (Viemam) Ltd 1,281 1,262
Harvey Nash (Ireland) Ltd 3,771 3,801
Fila & Myszel Associates Sp 98 108
Bjerke & Luther AS 1,283 1,300
46,551 47,074

Intangible assets
Alumni AB Brand 1,005 1,116
Bjerke & Luther AS Brand 496 527
Total 48,052 48,717

Durmg the year the goodwill in respect of each of the cash generating units was tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS36 All were assessed to have a value 1n use 1n excess of their respective carrying values, and hence no adjustments to
goodwill were considered necessary

The key assumptions 1n the value 1n use calculations were

The model assumes a 7 year business cycle and then a terminal value The first 3 years of the forecasts were based on post-tax
cash flows denved from the management approved 3 year plan For the followmng 4 years, the growth rates are based on
management’s best estimate and range from 5% to 10% The terminal growth rate is based on the long term growth rate for
each country and was on average 2 5% Management beheve the forecasts are achievable

The discount rate used was based on the industry weighted average cost of capital for each country and was on average 10 0%
(2011 10 6%)

There 1s significant headroom in the testing for impairment for all the acquired subsidianes apart from Bjerke & Luther AS in
Poland which has headroom of £0 7m A sensitivity analysis has been performed 1n assessing recoverable amounts of goodwill
This has been based on changes 1n key assumptions considered by management to be possible including a 10% decrease m the
assumed growth rates and a 10% increase 1n the assumed weighted average cost of capital The analysis reveals that no
impairment would arise under each scenano

12. Trade and Other Receivables

2012 2011
£°000 £°000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade receivables 78,451 70,088
Less Provision for bad and doubtful debts (289) (559)
78,162 69,529
Other receivables 1,543 3,164
Prepayments and accrued income 17,652 10,977

91,357 83,670

As of 31 January 2012, trade receivables of £78 2m (2011 £69 5m) were fully recoverable
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Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not considered impaired As of 31 January 2012, trade receivables
of £23 4m (2011 £22 8m) were over 30 days old but not impaired This 1s consistent with normal commercial practices and
prior years These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there 15 no recent history of default The agemg
analysis of these trade receivables 1s as follows

2012 2011

Months overdue £°000 £°000
1 — 2 months 16,808 15,575
2 - 3 months 4,768 4,380
Over 3 months 1,825 2,864
23,401 22,819

As of 31 January 2012, trade receivables of £0 3m (2011 £0 6m) were impaired and provided for

The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which are mn difficult economic situations  All the impaired
recervables are more than 3 months overdue The creation and release of provisions for impaired recervables have been
included 1in ‘admmnistrative expenses’ in the mncome statement The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contan impaired assets

Movements on the group provision for impairment of trade recervables are as follows

2012 2011
£°000 £7°000

At 1 February 559 349
Provision for receivables impairment 261 345
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible (365) (117)
Unused amounts reversed (166) (18)
At 31 January 289 559

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of recervable listed above The
group does not hold any collateral as secunity

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included 1n ‘total administrative expenses’ in the
Income statement

The carrying amounts of the Group’s receivables are denominated n the following currencies

2012 2011
£°000 £°000

Sterling 27,576 24,032
Euros 56,395 43,817
US dollar 6,614 5,609
Other currencies 6,772 10,212

97,357 83,670

Harvey Nash Group plc Page 44




13. Trade and Other Payables — current

2012 2011
£°000 £°000
Trade payables 48,175 44,360
Other tax and social security payable 8,976 12,405
Accruals and deferred income 31,972 23,022
Other payables 1,990 3,452
91,113 83,239
14. Current Tax Liabilities
2012 2011
£°000 £°000
Current tax hamhties 178 1,861
15. Analysis of Changes in Net Funds
1 February Cash flow Foreign 3
2011 exchange January
movements 2012
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Net Funds 8,278 (2,808) (286) 5,184
Net Funds compnse of cash and cash equivalents less invoice discounting and overdrafts utilised
16. Operating Lease Commitments
The Group has total future commitments under operating leases for each of the following penods
2012 2012 2011 2011
Vehlcles, Vehlcles,
plant and plant and
Property equipment Property equipment
£°000 £°000 £°000 £7000
Commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases:
Within one year 5,188 587 7,598 527
Later than one year and less than five years 7,385 767 1,735 511
After five years 770 - 706 -
13,343 1,354 16,039 1,038
17 Called Up Share Capital
2012 2011
£°000 £°000
Authorised
110,000,000 (2011 110,000,000) ordinary shares of 5p each 5,500 5,500
Allotted and fully paid
73,450,393 ordnary shares of 5p each (2011 73,450,393) 3,673 3,673
The Harvey Nash Employment Benefit Trust held 701,211 shares (2011 624,273 shares)
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18. [FRS 2 Share Based Payments

The Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP) was introduced m January 2003 Under the ESOP the remuneration committee can
grant options over shares 1n the company to employees of the Company Options are granted with a fixed exercise pnce equal
to the market price of the shares under option at the date of grant The contractual life of an option 15 10 years Awards under
the ESOP are open to all full time employees except those who have had a material interest in the Group n the previous 12
months Options granted under the ESOP will become exercisable on the third anmiversary of the date of grant, subject to the
growth 1n earnings per share over that period exceeding the compounded annual growth 1n the Retail Prices Index (RPI) by 3%
per annum  Options were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model No performance conditions were mcluded in
the fair value calculations

No options were 1ssued 1n the year ended 31 January 2012 or 31 January 2011

A reconciliation of option movements over the year to 31 January 2012 1s shown below

2012 2011

Number Weighted Number Weighted

(’000) average exercise (’000)  average exercise

price price

(£) £)

Qutstanding at 1 February 4,459 0.56 4,780 055
Granted - - - -
Forfeit - - (281) 041
Exercised (374) 0.41 (C10)] 031
Qutstanding at 31 January 4,085 0.58 4,459 036
Exercisable at 31 January 4,085 0.58 3,911 059

Details of the expiry date of options cutstanding at the year end 15 given in the Remunetation Report on page 23
The total charge for the year relating to employee share based payment plans was £ml (2011 £0 02m), all of which related to
equity-settled share based payment transactions After deferred tax the total charge was £m1l (2011 £0 ¢1m)

19. Share Premium Account

2012 2011

£ 7000 £°000

At | February 8,425 8,425

At 31 January 8,425 8,425
20 Retamed Earnings

2012 2011

£°000 £7000

At 1 February 26,203 23,603

Profit for the year 5,815 4,253

Employee share options and bonus plan 13 15

Share based payments deferred tax charge to equity - (14)

Acquisitions in the year - 7

Dividends paid (1,828) (L,661)

At 31 January 30,203 26,203
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21 Fair value and other reserves

Fair value and other reserves include £1 7m relating to a capital redemption reserve created on flotanon The remainder

represents share premium on share caprital issued in relation to the purchase of certain acquisitions

22. Employees and Directors

Staff costs for the Group during the year 2012 2011
(including directors) £°000 £°000
Wages and salanes 40,384 36,175
Soctal security costs 5,304 4,453
Other pension costs (note 23) 1,376 1,236
Share option charge and share based employee settlement - 20
47,064 41,884

2012 Rest of
Average number of people employed 1n sales and admumistration UK World Total

(including executive directors)

Directors 4 - 4
Sales 187 240 427
Adminmistrative 114 87 201
305 327 632
2011 UK Rest of Total

Average number of people employed 1n sales and administration World

(including executive directors)

Directors 3 - 3
Sales 165 207 372
Adminstrative 88 96 184
256 303 559
Key management compensation 2012 2011
£°000 £000
Short-term employee benefits 4,426 4,051
Post-employment benefits 294 268
4,720 4,319

Key management s defined as key employees at divisional director level i the Group as well as both Executive and Non

Executive Board members

Details of the remuneration of each Director, which form part of the audited financial statements, are set out 1n the

Remuneration Report on pages 19 to 23
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23. Penswons

Harvey Nash has 1n place three pension schemes 1n the UK, the Harvey Nash plc Directors’ Retirement and Death Benefits
Scheme, a Group Personal Pension Plan provided by Scottish Widows, and a stakeholder scheme with Scottish Widows which
had no participating members at the year end

The Harvey Nash plc Directors” Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme (the ‘Scheme’) 1s a small self-admimistered scheme It
15 an exempt-approved scheme under Chapter 1 of Part XIV of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from the Company by trustees The current trustees are TFA Crawford, DC Higgins, DH Treacher
and Scottish Equitable which s the pensioner trustee The three individual trustees are the only members of the Scheme The
Company has the power to appoint individual trustees The retirement scheme 15 provided on a defined contribution basis The
contnbutions in the year were £ml (2011 £mil)

The Group Personal Pension Plan (the ‘Plan’) 1s a defined contnbution scheme provided by Scottish Widows The Group’s
normal policy 1s to invite employees to join the Plan automatically on completion of three years™ qualifying service, although
senior employees may be invited to join earlier at the diseretion of the Directors The Group contributes 5% and the employee
contributes 3% of the employee’s basic earnings {excluding bonuses) to the Plan The Group’s total contribution to the Plan for
the year to 31 January 2012 was £428,762 (2011 £413,591)

The Group operates separate schemes i all the overseas locations The Group’s total contribution to schemes n overseas
locations for the year to 31 January 2012 was £947.248 (2011 £822 899)

24. Related party transactions

Banking Cross Guarantees

The following companies have given security to Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company

The Group guarantees have been entered into by the Compames histed below and relate to any payment due under the Banking
agreement by any of the comparnies listed below

Name of company Secunity Security
Harvey Nash plc Group Guarantee Debenture
Harvey Nash Resource Management Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Interim Management In Information Technology Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Nash Direct Luimited Group Guarantee Debenture
Vertis Consulting Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Mortimer Spinks Limated Group Guarantee Debenture
Techpartners International Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Harvey Nash Group EBT Limited Group Guarantee -
Impact Executives Holdings Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Impact Executives Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Broadbay Networks Inc Group Guarantee -

The relationship between Harvey Nash Group Plc and ats principal subsidiaries 1s disclosed 1n note 25
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25. Investments

Principal Subsidiaries and Branches
The details of the principal subsidiary compamnies and branches owned directly or indirectly by the Company or Harvey Nash
plc as at 31 January 2012 were as follows

Name of company Country of Proportion of Principal activity
mcorporation and ordmary share
operatton capital and
voting rights

Harvey Nash AG Switzerland 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash BV The Netherlands 100% Recrmitment consultancy
Harvey Nash GmbH Germany 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash IT Consulting NV Belgium 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash NV Belgum 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Offshorve Development Centre Branch - Vietnam 100% Software development
Harvey Nash plc England 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash SA France 100% Recruitment consultancy
Impact Executives Ltd England 100% Recrutment consultancy
Mortimer Spinks Limited England 100% Recrurtment consultancy
Harvey Nash Inc uUs 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash (Ireland) Ltd Treland 100% Recruitment consultancy
Alurmn1 AB Sweden 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Mash (Vietnam) Lid Vietnam 100% Software development
Harvey Nash Consulting (Scotland) Limited  Scotland 100% Recruttment consultancy
TechDiscovery uUs 56 6% Software development
Fila & Myszel Associates Sp Poland 5% Recruitment consultancy
Bjerke & Luther AS Norway 50 1% Recruitment consultancy

All subsidiary compames are consohdated

The results for Fila & Myszel Associates Sp are not considered material to the Group so no non controlling nterest has been
recognised.

The directors believe that the book value of investments 1s supported by therr underlying net assets

26. Finanacial Instruments

The Group’s financial instruments comprise cash, bank overdraft, invoice discounting and various items such as trade
recetvables, trade payables that anse directly from 1ts operations The farr value of financial assets and habihties 1s
approximately equal to thewr book values

Additional disclosures are set out mn the accounting policies relating to risk management An explanation of the role that
financial instruments have had during the year in the management of the Group’s funding liquidity and foreign exchange 1s
provided on page 32 of the Annual Report

In accordance with IAS 39, “Financial mnstruments Recognition and measurement”, the Group has reviewed all contracts and
confirmed that none contain embedded denvatives that are required to be separately accounted for i1f they do not meet certan

requirements set out 1n the standard There were no embedded derivatives at 31 January 2012

The Group held no derivative financial mstruments at 31 January 2012 (2011 none) requiring to be fair valued
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Borrowing facilities

The Group had the following committed facilities available at 31 January 1n respect of an overdraft with a maximum facility of

£2 Om at 31 January 2012 (2011 £2 Om)

The Group also has invoice discounting facihiies for working capital in the UK of £20 Om, the Netherlands of €18 Om and the

US of $6 Om

The overdraft expires within one year and the invoice discounting facilities are available on a rolling 12 month basis

All conditions precedent to the overdraft and invoice discounting were met at 31 January 2012 and 31 Janvary 2011

Undrawn borrowing facilities Floating 2012 2011
Fixed rate rate Total Total
000 000 000 000
Overdraft £ - 1,897 1,897 613
Invoice discounting facilities - UK £ - 12,357 12,357 14,078
Invoice discounting facthities - Netherlands € - 12,576 12,576 18,000
Invoice discounting facilities - US s - 4,231 4,231 -
Undrawn borrowing facilities Floating 2012 2011
Fixed rate rate Total Total
£°000 £°000 £000 £°000
Overdraft - 1,897 1,897 613
Invoice discounting facihihes - UK - 12,357 12,357 14,078
Invoice discounting facilities - Netherlands - 10,432 10,432 15,406
Invoice discounting facilities - US - 2,681 2,681 -
Total - 27,367 27,367 30,097
Drawn borrowing facilities Floating 2012 2011
Fixed rate rate Total Total
000 000 *000 "000
Overdraft £ - 103 103 1,387
invoice discounting facihities - UK £ - 7,643 7,643 5,923
Invoice discounting facilities - Netherlands € - 5,424 5,424 -
Invoice discounting facilities - US 5 - 1,769 1,769 -
Floating 2012 2011
Drawn borrowing facilities Fixed rate rate Total Total
£°000 £000 £000 £'000
Overdraft - 103 103 1,387
Invoice discounting facilities - UK - 7,643 7,643 5,923
Invoice discounting facilities - Netherlands - 4,499 4,499 -
Invoice discounting facilities - US - 1,121 1,121 -
Total - 13,366 13,366 7,310
27 Share based payments
2012 2011
£°000 £°000
Share based payments - 20
- 20
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28. Dividends

The dividends paid in the year end January 2012 were £1 8m (2011 £1 7m)
The proposed final dividend of £1 2m (1 635p per share) 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
on 28 june 2012 (2011 1 48p per share amounting to £1 1m) and has not been included as a hability at 31 January 2012

2012

£°000

Final dividend for year end January 2011 of 1 48p per share 1,080
Intenm dividend for year end January 2012 of 1 025p per share 748
1,828

Proposed final dividend for year end January 2012 of 1 635p per share 1,195
2011

£°000

Final dividend for year end January 2010 of 1 35p per share 981
Interim dividend for year end January 2011 of 0 935p per share 680
1,661

29. Provisions

Provisions relate to a dilapidations provision on a lease which expires in June 2012 and two onerous property leases which run
to September 2013 and September 2014 respectively

2012

£°000

At 1 February 328
Charge 1n the year 200
Utilised 1n the year (153)
At 31 January 375

£287k will fall due within one year and £88k will be payable after more than one year
30. Business Combinations

As previously reported, on 29 April 2010, the Group acquired 50 1% of the share capital of Bjerke & Luther AS, an Executive
search and selection firm in Norway, for a consideration of £2 Om

Harvey Nash has been granted a call option to acquire the additional 49 9 % of the shares 1n Bjerke & Luther AS from the
sellers which may be exercised at the option of Harvey Nash between | February 2013 and 2 Apnl 2013, based upon a multiple
of the average profit before tax of Bjerke & Luther AS over a 3 year period until 31 January 2013 The value of the call option
has been considered and at the balance sheet date, based on valuations in the Norwegian market, 1s deemed to reflect the fair
value of the final consideration due should the remaining 49 9% be acquired and as such no asset has been recogmsed in respect
of the option '

If Harvey Nash does not exercise the call optton the sellers will have an option to acquire the mitial shares from Harvey Nash
for a consideration equal to the consideration paid by Harvey Nash plus outstanding dividends
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Details of the net assets acquired and the intangible asset on 29 April 2010 are as follows

£000
Cash consideration 2,043
Fair value of net 1dentifiable assets acquired (77)
Intangible Asset 1,866
£000 ‘
Goodwill 1,319
Brand asset 547
Intangible Asset 1,866
The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows
£000
Tangible Fixed Assets 106
Brand Asset 547
Cash 575
Recervables 364
Payables (691
901
Non-controlling interest (177
Net 1dentifiable assets acquired 724
[
Qutflow of cash to acquire business, net of cash acquired ‘
i
£000 !
Cash consideration 2,043
Cash and cash equivalents 1n subsidiary acquired (575)
Cash outflow on acquisition 1,468
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Harvey Nash Group ple

Financial statements for the Parent Company
Harvey Nash Group ple, the Company
Under UK GAAP

Page 53




Independent Auditors’ report to the Members of Harvey Nash Group ple

We have audited the parent company financial statements of Harvey Nash Group Plc for the year ended 31 January 2012 which
comprise Company Balance Sheet and the related notes The financral reporting framework that has been applied 1n therr
preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explamed more fully in the Directors” Responsibilities Statement set out on page 24, the directors are responsible for the
preparaticn of the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the parent company financial statements 1 accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companmes Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibihity for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or 1into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent i writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from maternial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the parent company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and
the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financtal information 1n the
Harvey Nash Group Plc Annual Report 2012 to 1dentify material mconsistencies with the audited financial statements 1f we
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our epinion the parent company financial statements

» give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 3 1st January 2012,

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
+  have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

* the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006, and

e the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the parent company financial statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 1f] 1n

cur opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been Kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recerved from branches not visited by us, or

¢  the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and retwrns, or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc for the year ended 31 January 2012

Nigel Reynolds

Semor Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

27 Apnl 2012
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Company Balance Sheet
as at 31 January 2012

2012 2011
£7000 £°000
Notes
Fixed assets
Investments 3 52,264 52,264
Non current assets
Debtors 4 12,501 12,327
12,501 12,327
Creditors due within one year 5 (1,937) (3,139)
Net current assets 10,564 9,188
Total assets less current habilities 62,828 61,452
Creditors due after more than one year 6 {6,823) (5,626)
Net assets 56,005 55,826
Capital and reserves
Share capital 7 3,673 3,673
Share premium account 8 8,425 8,425
Capntal contribution 8 20,000 20,000
Other reserves 8 13,814 13,814
Profit and loss account 8 10,092 9,914
Equity sharcholders’ funds 9 56,004 55,826

The financial statements on pages 55 to 59 were approved by the Board on 27 April 2012 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Company Number 03320790

fan Knrkp:llck

Chairman

@*&Q\Mﬂa

Richard Ashcroft
Group Finance Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, and 1n accordance
with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom The principal accounting policies,
which have been applied consistently throughout the year, are set out below

As allowed by $S408 Companies Act 2006, no profit and loss account 1s presented 1n respect of the parent company

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available to parent companies under paragraph 3C of FRS 25 “Financial
Instruments Disclosure and Presentation” not to provide the mformation otherwise required by paragraphs 51 to 95 of the
standard, as the Group’s consolidated financial statements, in which the Company 15 included, provides equivalent disclosures
under IFRS 7 “Financial instruments Disclosures”

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption from preparing a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS 1 (revised
1996}, since 1t 1s mcluded 1n the consohdated financial statements of Harvey Nash Group ple, which are publicly available

2 Accounting Policies

(a) Foreign exchange

Transactions denominated wn foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and habilities are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date and any
differences ansing are taken to the profit and loss account

(b) Taxatton

Deferred taxation 1s provided in full for material ttming differences except where recoverability of a deferred tax asset 15
constdered to be remote in the foreseeable future Deferred tax balances are not discounted unless the effects are considered to
be matenal to the Company’s results

(c) Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are shown at cost less provision for impairment Impairment reviews are conducted annually

{(d) Related Party Transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under paragraph 3(c) from the provisions of FRS8, ‘Related Party
Disclosures’, on the grounds that 1t 15 wholly owned subsidiary of a group headed by Harvey Nash Group ple, whose accounts
are publicly available

{e) Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability 1n the Company’s financial statements 1n the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders Interim dividends are recogmsed when paid
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3. Investments

Fixed asset iInvestments 2012
£°000

Shares in group undertakings

At 1 February 2011 52,264

At 31 January 2012 52,264

At 31 January 2011 52,264

The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments 15 supported by their underlying net assets

The carrying value of the investments was tested against discounted fiture cash flows during the year The forecasts were based
on pre-tax cash flows derived from approved budgets for the 2012-2013 financial year Management believe the forecasts are

reasonably achievable Where the future cash flows could not support the carrying value an impairment was recognised

Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

The details of the principal subsidiary companies and branches owned directly or indirectly by The Company or Harvey Nash

plc as at 31 January 2012 were as follows

Name of company Country of Proportion of Principal activity
mcorporation and ordmary share
operation capital and
voting rights

Harvey Nash AG Switzerland 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash BV The Netherlands 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash GmbH Germany 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash IT Consulting NV Belgium 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash NV Belgium 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Offshore Development Centre Branch - Vietnam 100% Software development
Harvey Nash plc England 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash SA France 100% Recruitment consultancy
Impact Executives Ltd England 100% Recruitment consultancy
Mortimer Spinks Limited England 100% Recruitment consultancy
Alumm AB Sweden 100% Recruritment consultancy
Harvey Nash (Vietnam) Ltd Vietnam 100% Seftware development
Harvey Nash (Ireland) Ltd Ireland 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Inc us 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Consulting (Scotland) Limited Scotland 100% Recruitment consultancy
Fila & Myszel Associates Sp Poland 75% Recruitment consultancy
Bjerke & Luther AS Norway 50 1% Recruitment consultancy
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4. Debtors

2012 2011
£°000 £7000
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 12,501 12,327

Interest 1s charged at market rate on intercompany funding balances 1n accordance with formal loan agreements between the

parties

5. Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Withhn One Year

2012 2011
£°000 £'000
Bank overdraft 1,937 3,139
6. Creditors: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year
2012 2011
£'000 £000
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 6,804 5,607
Deferred consideration 19 19
6,823 5,626
Interest 1s charged on intercompany funding balances in accordance with formal loan agreements between the parttes
7. Share Capital
2012 2011
£°000 £000
Authorised
110,000,000 (2011 110,000,000} ordinary shares of 5p each 5,500 5,500
Allotted and fully paid
73,450,393 ordinary shares of 5p each (2011 73,450,393) 3,673 3,673
8. Reserves
Share Share Capatal Other Profit Total
capital premimum Contribution reserves and loss equity
account
£°000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £7000
Balance at
As at 1 February 2011 3,673 8,425 20,000 13,814 9,914 55,826
Dividends paid - - - - (1,828) (1,828
Dividends recerved 1,653 1,653
Profit for the year - - - - 178 178
Exchange movements - - - - 175 175
31 January 2012 3,673 8,425 20,000 13,814 10,092 56,004
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The share premium reserve comprises share prermum on the 1ssued share capatal
The capital contribution reserve was created on flotation

The other reserves represents share premium on share capital 1ssued in relation to the purchase of certain acquisitions

9. Reconcihation of movement 1n shareholders’ funds

2012 2011

£°000 £'000

Profit for the year 178 252
Dividends received 1,653 -
Dhividends pard (1,828) (1,661)
Exchange gain/ (loss) 175 6
Shares to be 1ssued - (49)
Employee share option charge - 20
Net increase in shareholders’ funds 178 (1,432}
Opening shareholders’ funds 55,826 57,258
Closing equity shareholders® funds 56,004 55,826

10. Profit Attributed to the Parent Company

The profit for the year ended 31 January 2012 1n the financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company, was £1 8m
(2011 £03m) As allowed by s408 Companies Act 2006, no profit and loss account 1s presented 1n respect of the parent
company

11. Employees and Threctors

Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company employed no staff in the year (2011 ml), other than directors

Amounts paid by Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company 1n respect of Directors 1n the year was ml (2011 mil)
See the Remuneratton Report 1n Harvey Nash Group plc accounts for full details of the Directors remuneration from the Group

12. Related party transactions

The following companies have given security to Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company

Name of company Security Security
Harvey Nash plc Group Guarantee Debenture
Harvey Nash Resource Management Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Interim Management In Information Technology Group Guarantee Debenture
Limited

Nash Direct Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Vertis Consulting Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Mortimer Spinks Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Techpartners International Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Harvey Nash Group EBT Limited Group Guarantee -
Impact Executives Holdings Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Impact Executives Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Broadbay Networks Inc Group Guarantee -
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